



Printer's Error
Reprinted
April 10, 2015

ENGROSSED

HOUSE BILL No. 1562

DIGEST OF HB 1562 (Updated April 9, 2015 3:57 pm - DI 55)

Citations Affected: IC 16-34; IC 25-0.5; IC 25-1; IC 25-2.1; IC 25-2.5; IC 25-4; IC 25-5.1; IC 25-6.1; IC 25-8; IC 25-10; IC 25-13; IC 25-14; IC 25-14.3; IC 25-14.5; IC 25-15; IC 25-17.3; IC 25-19; IC 25-20; IC 25-20.2; IC 25-20.7; IC 25-21.5; IC 25-21.8; IC 25-22.5; IC 25-23; IC 25-23.4; IC 25-23.5; IC 25-23.6; IC 25-23.7; IC 25-24; IC 25-26; IC 25-27; IC 25-27.5; IC 25-28.5; IC 25-29; IC 25-30; IC 25-31; IC 25-33; IC 25-34.1; IC 25-34.5; IC 25-35.6; IC 25-38.1.

Synopsis: Professional licensing matters. Requires that terminated pregnancy reports be filed electronically. Requires an individual who holds a professional license or certificate and who is convicted of a misdemeanor or felony to provide written notice of the conviction to the appropriate professional licensing board not later than 90 days after entry of the order or judgment of conviction. Provides that if a professional license or certificate is initially issued to the holder less than 90 days before the date on which such licenses or certificates generally expire, the license or certificate does not expire on the
(Continued next page)

Effective: July 1, 2015.

Zent, Bacon, Davisson

(SENATE SPONSORS — BROWN L, HOUCHIN, RANDOLPH)

January 20, 2015, read first time and referred to Committee on Public Health.
February 19, 2015, amended, reported — Do Pass.
February 23, 2015, read second time, ordered engrossed. Engrossed.
February 24, 2015, read third time, passed. Yeas 95, nays 0.

SENATE ACTION

March 2, 2015, read first time and referred to Committee on Commerce & Technology.
March 26, 2015, amended, reported favorably — Do Pass.
April 9, 2015, read second time, amended, ordered engrossed.

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



Digest Continued

general expiration date but instead expires at the conclusion of the next licensing period. Provide that a mandatory notice to a license holder of the upcoming expiration of the license holder's license must be sent at least 90 days (instead of 60 days) before the expiration date. Allows the professional licensing agency (agency) to delay issuing a license renewal for up to 120 days for purposes of investigation. (Current law allows a delay of up to 90 days.) Provides that, after December 31, 2017, athletic trainer licenses expire on a date established by the agency in odd-numbered years. Provides that the auctioneer commission is to elect officers at the first meeting held each year (instead of at the January meeting). Repeals the chapter of the professional licensing law concerning the revocation or suspension of a diabetes educator's license. Creates a civil penalty for failure to complete or timely transmit a pregnancy termination form. Provide that the members of the board of pharmacy, the manufactured home installer licensing board, and the home inspectors licensing board serve at the will and pleasure of the governor.



First Regular Session of the 119th General Assembly (2015)

PRINTING CODE. Amendments: Whenever an existing statute (or a section of the Indiana Constitution) is being amended, the text of the existing provision will appear in this style type, additions will appear in **this style type**, and deletions will appear in ~~this style type~~.

Additions: Whenever a new statutory provision is being enacted (or a new constitutional provision adopted), the text of the new provision will appear in **this style type**. Also, the word **NEW** will appear in that style type in the introductory clause of each SECTION that adds a new provision to the Indiana Code or the Indiana Constitution.

Conflict reconciliation: Text in *this style type* or ~~this style type~~ reconciles conflicts between statutes enacted by the 2014 Regular Session and 2014 Second Regular Technical Session of the General Assembly.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL No. 1562

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning professions and occupations.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

- 1 SECTION 1. IC 16-34-2-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012,
2 SECTION 120, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
3 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Every ~~medical facility where~~
4 ~~abortions~~ **physician who may be performed** **perform an abortion**
5 ~~shall be supplied with forms drafted~~ **enter all information required**
6 **by the state department into an electronic form** provided by the
7 state department, the purpose and function of which shall be the
8 improvement of maternal health and life through the compilation of
9 relevant maternal life and health factors and data, and a further purpose
10 and function shall be to monitor all abortions performed in Indiana to
11 assure the abortions are done only under the authorized provisions of
12 the law. Such forms shall include, among other things, the following:
13 (1) The age of the woman who is aborted.
14 (2) The place where the abortion is performed.
15 (3) The full name and address of the physicians performing the

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



- 1 abortion.
- 2 (4) The name of the father if known.
- 3 (5) The age of the father, or the approximate age of the father if
- 4 the father's age is unknown.
- 5 (6) The postfertilization age of the fetus, the manner in which the
- 6 postfertilization age was determined, and, if after the earlier of the
- 7 time the fetus obtains viability or the time the postfertilization age
- 8 of the fetus is at least twenty (20) weeks, the medical reason for
- 9 the abortion.
- 10 (7) The medical procedure employed to administer the abortion
- 11 and, if the medical procedure performed on a fetus who is viable
- 12 or has a postfertilization age of at least twenty (20) weeks:
- 13 (A) whether the method of abortion used was a method that, in
- 14 the reasonable judgment of a physician, would provide the best
- 15 opportunity for the fetus to survive; and
- 16 (B) the basis for the determination that the pregnant woman
- 17 had a condition described in this chapter that required the
- 18 abortion to avert the death of or serious impairment to the
- 19 pregnant woman.
- 20 (8) The mother's obstetrical history, including dates of other
- 21 abortions, if any.
- 22 (9) The results of pathological examinations if performed.
- 23 (10) Information as to whether the fetus was delivered alive.
- 24 (11) Records of all maternal deaths occurring within the health
- 25 facility where the abortion was performed.
- 26 (12) The date of the pregnancy termination.
- 27 (13) The date the form was received by the state department.
- 28 (b) The form provided for in subsection (a) shall be completed by
- 29 the physician performing the abortion and shall be transmitted to the
- 30 state department not later than July 30 for each abortion performed in
- 31 the first six (6) months of that year and not later than January 30 for
- 32 each abortion performed for the last six (6) months of the preceding
- 33 year. However, if an abortion is performed on a female who is less than
- 34 fourteen (14) years of age, the physician performing the abortion shall
- 35 transmit the form to the state department of health and the department
- 36 of child services within three (3) days after the abortion is performed.
- 37 (c) The dates in subsection (a)(12) and (a)(13) may not be redacted
- 38 for any use of the form.
- 39 (d) Each failure to ~~file~~ **submit** the completed form on time as
- 40 required under this section is a Class B misdemeanor.
- 41 (e) Not later than June 30 of each year, the state department shall
- 42 compile a public report providing the following:



1 (1) Statistics for the previous calendar year from the information
2 submitted under this section.

3 (2) Statistics for previous calendar years compiled by the state
4 department under this subsection, with updated information for
5 the calendar year that was submitted to the state department after
6 the compilation of the statistics.

7 The state department shall ensure that no identifying information of a
8 pregnant woman is contained in the report.

9 SECTION 2. IC 25-0.5-10-1, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014,
10 SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
11 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. As used in **IC 25-1-1.1 and IC 25-1-8-6,**
12 "board" means any of the entities described in this chapter.

13 SECTION 3. IC 25-1-1.1-0.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA
14 CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS**
15 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 0.5. As used in this chapter,**
16 **"board" has the meaning set forth in IC 25-0.5-10-1.**

17 SECTION 4. IC 25-1-1.1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.155-2011,
18 SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
19 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. **(a)** Except as provided under sections 2 through
20 5 of this chapter, a license or certificate of registration that an
21 individual is required by law to hold to engage in a business,
22 profession, or occupation may not be denied, revoked, or suspended
23 because the applicant or holder has been convicted of an offense. The
24 acts from which the applicant's or holder's conviction resulted may,
25 however, be considered as to whether the applicant or holder should be
26 entrusted to serve the public in a specific capacity.

27 **(b) An individual licensed or certified under this title shall, not**
28 **later than ninety (90) days after the entry of an order or judgment,**
29 **notify the board in writing of any misdemeanor or felony criminal**
30 **conviction, except traffic related misdemeanors other than**
31 **operating a motor vehicle under the influence of a drug or alcohol.**
32 **A certified copy of the order or judgment with a letter of**
33 **explanation must be submitted to the board along with the written**
34 **notice.**

35 SECTION 5. IC 25-1-2-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
36 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. ~~Effective October 1, 1961, such~~
37 **Subject to section 6(e) of this chapter,** licensing agencies as are
38 authorized to issue any of the foregoing shall issue and reissue such
39 licenses and collect the license fees for the same on the basis of a
40 **licensing period. two (2) years: and the dates by month and day which**
41 **govern the issuance or reissuance of licenses for one (1) year shall**
42 **govern the issuance or reissuance of licenses for two (2) years:**



1 provided, that ~~The entire fees fee for a the issuance or renewal of a~~
 2 ~~license two (2) year period shall be payable before issuance thereof on~~
 3 ~~the day and month designated for payment of fees for one (1) year~~
 4 ~~licenses: issuance or renewal of the license.~~

5 SECTION 6. IC 25-1-2-4 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1,
 6 2015]. ~~Sec. 4. Rebates and proration of fees for fractions of a biennium~~
 7 ~~shall be allowed only with respect to the second year of such license if~~
 8 ~~claim be made therefor before the expiration of the first year for which~~
 9 ~~the license was issued.~~

10 SECTION 7. IC 25-1-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2014,
 11 SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 12 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) As used in this section, "license" includes
 13 all occupational and professional licenses, registrations, permits, and
 14 certificates issued under the Indiana Code, and "licensee" includes all
 15 occupational and professional licensees, registrants, permittees, and
 16 certificate holders regulated under the Indiana Code.

17 (b) This section applies to the entities described in IC 25-0.5-3 that
 18 regulate occupations or professions under the Indiana Code.

19 (c) Notwithstanding any other law, the entities referenced in
 20 subsection (b) shall send a notice of the upcoming expiration of a
 21 license to each licensee at least ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days prior to the
 22 expiration of the license. The notice must inform the licensee of the
 23 need to renew and the requirement of payment of the renewal fee. If
 24 this notice of expiration is not sent by the entity, the licensee is not
 25 subject to a sanction for failure to renew if, once notice is received
 26 from the entity, the license is renewed within forty-five (45) days of the
 27 receipt of the notice.

28 (d) Notwithstanding any other law, the entities referenced in
 29 subsection (b) shall send notice of the expiration of a license to each
 30 individual whose license has expired within thirty (30) days following
 31 the expiration of the license. The notice must meet the following
 32 requirements:

33 (1) Inform the individual of the following:

34 (A) That the individual's license has expired.

35 (B) Any requirements that must be met before reinstatement
 36 of a license may occur.

37 (2) Be sent electronically. However, if the entity does not have an
 38 electronic mail address on record for the individual, the notice
 39 must be sent via United States mail.

40 (e) **If a license is first issued to an individual less than ninety (90)**
 41 **days before the date at the end of the licensing period on which**
 42 **licenses of the type issued to the individual expire generally, the**



1 **license issued to the individual:**

2 **(1) does not expire on that date; but**

3 **(2) expires at the conclusion of the next licensing period.**

4 SECTION 8. IC 25-1-5-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2014,
5 SECTION 12, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
6 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The agency shall employ necessary staff,
7 including specialists and professionals, to carry out the administrative
8 duties and functions of the boards, including but not limited to:

9 (1) notice of board meetings and other communication services;

10 (2) recordkeeping of board meetings, proceedings, and actions;

11 (3) recordkeeping of all persons licensed, regulated, or certified
12 by a board;

13 (4) administration of examinations; and

14 (5) administration of license or certificate issuance or renewal.

15 (b) In addition, the agency:

16 (1) shall prepare a consolidated statement of the budget requests
17 of all the boards described in IC 25-0.5-5;

18 (2) may coordinate licensing or certification renewal cycles,
19 examination schedules, or other routine activities to efficiently
20 utilize agency staff, facilities, and transportation resources, and to
21 improve accessibility of board functions to the public;

22 (3) may consolidate, where feasible, office space, recordkeeping,
23 and data processing services; and

24 (4) shall operate and maintain the electronic registry of
25 professions established under IC 25-1-5.5.

26 (c) In administering the renewal of licenses or certificates under this
27 chapter, the agency shall send a notice of the upcoming expiration of
28 a license or certificate to each holder of a license or certificate at least
29 ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days before the expiration of the license or
30 certificate. The notice must inform the holder of the license or
31 certificate of the need to renew and the requirement of payment of the
32 renewal fee. If this notice of expiration is not sent by the agency, the
33 holder of the license or certificate is not subject to a sanction for failure
34 to renew if, once notice is received from the agency, the license or
35 certificate is renewed within forty-five (45) days after receipt of the
36 notice.

37 (d) In administering an examination for licensure or certification,
38 the agency shall make the appropriate application forms available at
39 least thirty (30) days before the deadline for submitting an application
40 to all persons wishing to take the examination.

41 (e) The agency may require an applicant for license renewal to
42 submit evidence proving that:



- 1 (1) the applicant continues to meet the minimum requirements for
 2 licensure; and
 3 (2) the applicant is not in violation of:
 4 (A) the statute regulating the applicant's profession; or
 5 (B) rules adopted by the board regulating the applicant's
 6 profession.
- 7 (f) The agency shall process an application for renewal of a license
 8 or certificate:
 9 (1) not later than ten (10) days after the agency receives all
 10 required forms and evidence; or
 11 (2) within twenty-four (24) hours after the time that an applicant
 12 for renewal appears in person at the agency with all required
 13 forms and evidence.
- 14 This subsection does not require the agency to issue a renewal license
 15 or certificate to an applicant if subsection (g) applies.
- 16 (g) The agency may delay issuing a license renewal for up to ~~ninety~~
 17 ~~(90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days after the renewal date for the
 18 purpose of permitting the board to investigate information received by
 19 the agency that the applicant for renewal may have committed an act
 20 for which the applicant may be disciplined. If the agency delays issuing
 21 a license renewal, the agency shall notify the applicant that the
 22 applicant is being investigated. Except as provided in subsection (h),
 23 before the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day
 24 period, the board shall do one (1) of the following:
 25 (1) Deny the license renewal following a personal appearance by
 26 the applicant before the board.
 27 (2) Issue the license renewal upon satisfaction of all other
 28 conditions for renewal.
 29 (3) Issue the license renewal and file a complaint under IC 25-1-7.
 30 (4) Request the office of the attorney general to conduct an
 31 investigation under subsection (i) if, following a personal
 32 appearance by the applicant before the board, the board has good
 33 cause to believe that there has been a violation of IC 25-1-9-4 by
 34 the applicant.
 35 (5) Upon agreement of the applicant and the board and following
 36 a personal appearance by the applicant before the board, renew
 37 the license and place the applicant on probation status under
 38 IC 25-1-9-9.
- 39 (h) If an individual fails to appear before the board under subsection
 40 (g), the board may take action on the applicant's license allowed under
 41 subsection (g)(1), (g)(2), or (g)(3).
 42 (i) If the board makes a request under subsection (g)(4), the office



1 of the attorney general shall conduct an investigation. Upon completion
 2 of the investigation, the office of the attorney general may file a
 3 petition alleging that the applicant has engaged in activity described in
 4 IC 25-1-9-4. If the office of the attorney general files a petition, the
 5 board shall set the matter for a hearing. If, after the hearing, the board
 6 finds the practitioner violated IC 25-1-9-4, the board may impose
 7 sanctions under IC 25-1-9-9. The board may delay issuing the renewal
 8 beyond the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days after the
 9 renewal date until a final determination is made by the board. The
 10 applicant's license remains valid until the final determination of the
 11 board is rendered unless the renewal is denied or the license is
 12 summarily suspended under IC 25-1-9-10.

13 (j) The license of the applicant for a license renewal remains valid
 14 during the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period unless the
 15 license renewal is denied following a personal appearance by the
 16 applicant before the board before the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one**
 17 **hundred twenty (120)** day period. If the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred**
 18 **twenty (120)** day period expires without action by the board, the
 19 license shall be automatically renewed at the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one**
 20 **hundred twenty (120)** day period.

21 (k) Notwithstanding any other statute, the agency may stagger
 22 license or certificate renewal cycles. However, if a renewal cycle for a
 23 specific board or committee is changed, the agency must obtain the
 24 approval of the affected board or committee.

25 (l) An application for a license, certificate, registration, or permit is
 26 abandoned without an action of the board, if the applicant does not
 27 complete the requirements to complete the application within one (1)
 28 year after the date on which the application was filed. However, the
 29 board may, for good cause shown, extend the validity of the application
 30 for additional thirty (30) day periods. An application submitted after
 31 the abandonment of an application is considered a new application.

32 SECTION 9. IC 25-1-6-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2014,
 33 SECTION 17, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 34 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The licensing agency shall employ
 35 necessary staff, including specialists and professionals, to carry out the
 36 administrative duties and functions of the boards, including but not
 37 limited to:

- 38 (1) notice of board meetings and other communication services;
- 39 (2) record keeping of board meetings, proceedings, and actions;
- 40 (3) record keeping of all persons or individuals licensed,
 41 regulated, or certified by a board;
- 42 (4) administration of examinations; and



- 1 (5) administration of license or certificate issuance or renewal.
 2 (b) In addition, the licensing agency:
 3 (1) shall prepare a consolidated statement of the budget requests
 4 of all the boards described in IC 25-0.5-7;
 5 (2) may coordinate licensing or certification renewal cycles,
 6 examination schedules, or other routine activities to efficiently
 7 utilize licensing agency staff, facilities, and transportation
 8 resources, and to improve accessibility of board functions to the
 9 public; and
 10 (3) may consolidate, where feasible, office space, record keeping,
 11 and data processing services.
 12 (c) In administering the renewal of licenses or certificates under this
 13 chapter, the licensing agency shall issue a ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** day
 14 notice of expiration to all holders of a license or certificate. The notice
 15 must inform the holder of a license or certificate of the requirements to:
 16 (1) renew the license or certificate; and
 17 (2) pay the renewal fee.
 18 (d) If the licensing agency fails to send notice of expiration under
 19 subsection (c), the holder of the license or certificate is not subject to
 20 a sanction for failure to renew if the holder renews the license or
 21 certificate not more than forty-five (45) days after the holder receives
 22 the notice from the licensing agency.
 23 (e) The licensing agency may require an applicant for a license or
 24 certificate renewal to submit evidence showing that the applicant:
 25 (1) meets the minimum requirements for licensure or
 26 certification; and
 27 (2) is not in violation of:
 28 (A) the law regulating the applicant's profession; or
 29 (B) rules adopted by the board regulating the applicant's
 30 profession.
 31 (f) The licensing agency may delay renewing a license or certificate
 32 for not more than ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days after the
 33 renewal date to permit the board to investigate information received by
 34 the licensing agency that the applicant for renewal may have committed
 35 an act for which the applicant may be disciplined. If the licensing
 36 agency delays renewing a license or certificate, the licensing agency
 37 shall notify the applicant that the applicant is being investigated.
 38 Except as provided in subsection (g), the board shall do one (1) of the
 39 following before the expiration of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty**
 40 **(120)** day period:
 41 (1) Deny renewal of the license or certificate following a personal
 42 appearance by the applicant before the board.



- 1 (2) Renew the license or certificate upon satisfaction of all other
2 requirements for renewal.
- 3 (3) Renew the license and file a complaint under IC 25-1-7.
- 4 (4) Request the office of the attorney general to conduct an
5 investigation under subsection (h) if, following a personal
6 appearance by the applicant before the board, the board has good
7 cause to believe that the applicant engaged in activity described
8 in IC 25-1-11-5.
- 9 (5) Upon agreement of the applicant and the board and following
10 a personal appearance by the applicant before the board, renew
11 the license or certificate and place the applicant on probation
12 status under IC 25-1-11-12.
- 13 (g) If an applicant fails to appear before the board under subsection
14 (f), the board may take action as provided in subsection (f)(1), (f)(2),
15 or (f)(3).
- 16 (h) If the board makes a request under subsection (f)(4), the office
17 of the attorney general shall conduct an investigation. Upon completion
18 of the investigation, the office of the attorney general may file a
19 petition alleging that the applicant has engaged in activity described in
20 IC 25-1-11-5. If the office of the attorney general files a petition, the
21 board shall set the matter for a public hearing. If, after a public hearing,
22 the board finds the applicant violated IC 25-1-11-5, the board may
23 impose sanctions under IC 25-1-11-12. The board may delay renewing
24 a license or certificate beyond ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)**
25 days after the renewal date until a final determination is made by the
26 board. The applicant's license or certificate remains valid until the final
27 determination of the board is rendered unless the renewal is:
- 28 (1) denied; or
- 29 (2) summarily suspended under IC 25-1-11-13.
- 30 (i) The license or certificate of the applicant for license renewal
31 remains valid during the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day
32 period unless the license or certificate is denied following a personal
33 appearance by the applicant before the board before the end of the
34 ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period. If the ~~ninety (90)~~
35 **one hundred twenty (120)** day period expires without action by the
36 board, the license or certificate shall be automatically renewed at the
37 end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period.
- 38 (j) Notwithstanding any other law, the licensing agency may stagger
39 license or certificate renewal cycles.
- 40 (k) An application for a license or certificate is abandoned without
41 an action by the board if the applicant does not complete the
42 requirements for obtaining the license or certificate not more than one



1 (1) year after the date on which the application was filed. However, the
 2 board may, for good cause shown, extend the validity of the application
 3 for additional thirty (30) day periods. An application submitted after
 4 the abandonment of an application is considered a new application.

5 SECTION 10. IC 25-1-8-8, AS ADDED BY P.L.197-2007,
 6 SECTION 21, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 7 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) As used in this section, "board" has the
 8 meaning set forth in section 6(a) of this chapter.

9 (b) The licensing agency may delay reinstating a license, certificate,
 10 or registration for not more than ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)**
 11 days after the date the applicant applies for reinstatement of a license,
 12 certificate, or registration to permit the board to investigate information
 13 received by the licensing agency that the applicant for reinstatement
 14 may have committed an act for which the applicant may be disciplined.
 15 If the licensing agency delays reinstating a license, certificate, or
 16 registration, the licensing agency shall notify the applicant that the
 17 applicant is being investigated. Except as provided in subsection (c),
 18 the board shall do one (1) of the following before the expiration of the
 19 ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period:

20 (1) Deny reinstatement of the license, certificate, or registration
 21 following a personal appearance by the applicant before the
 22 board.

23 (2) Reinstatement the license, certificate, or registration upon
 24 satisfaction of all other requirements for reinstatement.

25 (3) Reinstatement the license and file a complaint under IC 25-1-7.

26 (4) Request the office of the attorney general to conduct an
 27 investigation under subsection (d) if, following a personal
 28 appearance by the applicant before the board, the board has good
 29 cause to believe that the applicant engaged in activity described
 30 in IC 25-1-9-4 or IC 25-1-11-5.

31 (5) Upon agreement of the applicant and the board and following
 32 a personal appearance by the applicant before the board, reinstate
 33 the license, certificate, or registration and place the applicant on
 34 probation status under IC 25-1-9-9 or IC 25-1-11-12.

35 (c) If an applicant fails to appear before the board under subsection
 36 (b), the board may take action as provided in subsection (b)(1), (b)(2),
 37 or (b)(3).

38 (d) If the board makes a request under subsection (b)(4), the office
 39 of the attorney general shall conduct an investigation. Upon completion
 40 of the investigation, the office of the attorney general may file a
 41 petition alleging that the applicant has engaged in activity described in
 42 IC 25-1-9-4 or IC 25-1-11-5. If the office of the attorney general files



1 a petition, the board shall set the matter for a public hearing. If, after a
 2 public hearing, the board finds that the applicant violated IC 25-1-9-4
 3 or IC 25-1-11-5, the board may impose sanctions under IC 25-1-9-9 or
 4 IC 25-1-11-12. The board may delay reinstating a license, certificate,
 5 or registration beyond ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days
 6 after the date the applicant files an application for reinstatement of a
 7 license, certificate, or registration until a final determination is made
 8 by the board.

9 (e) The license, certificate, or registration of the applicant for
 10 license reinstatement remains invalid during the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one**
 11 **hundred twenty (120)** day period unless:

- 12 (1) the license, certificate, or registration is reinstated following
- 13 a personal appearance by the applicant before the board before
- 14 the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period;
- 15 (2) the board issues a conditional license to the practitioner that
- 16 is effective until the reinstatement is denied or the license is
- 17 reinstated; or
- 18 (3) the reinstatement is denied.

19 If the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period expires
 20 without action by the board, the license, certificate, or registration shall
 21 be automatically reinstated at the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred**
 22 **twenty (120)** day period.

23 SECTION 11. IC 25-2.1-4-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 24 SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 25 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, an initial and
 26 renewed certificate expires on the date established by the licensing
 27 agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

28 (b) An individual may renew a certificate by paying a renewal fee
 29 and complying with the continuing education requirements established
 30 under section 5 of this chapter on or before the expiration date of the
 31 certificate.

32 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
 33 expiration date of a certificate, the certificate becomes invalid without
 34 further action by the board.

35 (d) If an individual holds a certificate that has been invalid for not
 36 more than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the certificate if the
 37 individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

38 (e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a
 39 certificate expired, the individual who holds the certificate may seek
 40 reinstatement of the certificate by satisfying the requirements for
 41 reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

42 SECTION 12. IC 25-2.5-2-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,



1 SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
2 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
3 by the board expires on the date established by the agency under
4 IC 25-1-5-4 in each even-numbered year.

5 (b) To renew a license, an acupuncturist must:

6 (1) pay a renewal fee not later than the expiration date of the
7 license; and

8 (2) submit proof of current active licensure in acupuncture by the
9 National Certification Commission for Acupuncture and Oriental
10 Medicine.

11 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
12 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid without further
13 action by the board.

14 (d) If an individual holds a license that has been invalid for not more
15 than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the license if the
16 individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

17 (e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license
18 expired, the individual who holds the license may seek reinstatement
19 of the license by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under
20 IC 25-1-8-6(d).

21 SECTION 13. IC 25-4-1-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
22 SECTION 13, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
23 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every
24 registered architect who continues in active practice shall, biennially,
25 on or before the date established by the licensing agency under
26 IC 25-1-6-4, renew the registered architect's certificate of registration
27 and pay the required renewal fee.

28 (b) An architect registered or licensed in Indiana who has failed to
29 renew the architect's certificate of registration for a period of not more
30 than five (5) years may have the certificate of registration reinstated by
31 meeting the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

32 (c) An architect registered in Indiana who has failed to renew the
33 architect's certificate of registration for more than five (5) years may
34 have the certificate of registration reinstated by satisfying the
35 requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

36 (d) If any registered architect desires to retire from the practice of
37 architecture in Indiana, the architect may submit to the board the
38 architect's verified statement of intention to withdraw from practice.
39 The statement shall be entered upon the records of the board. During
40 the period of the architect's retirement, the architect is not liable for any
41 renewal or restoration fees.

42 (e) If any retired architect desires to return to the practice of



1 architecture in Indiana, the retired architect must meet the following
2 requirements:

3 (1) If the certificate of registration has been expired for not more
4 than five (5) years, the retired architect must:

5 (A) file with the board a verified statement indicating the
6 architect's desire to return to the practice of architecture; and

7 (B) pay a renewal fee equal to the fee set by the board to renew
8 an unexpired registration under this chapter.

9 (2) If the certificate of registration has been expired for more than
10 five (5) years, the retired architect must:

11 (A) file with the board a verified statement indicating the
12 architect's desire to return to the practice of architecture;

13 (B) pay a renewal fee equal to the fee set by the board to renew
14 an unexpired registration under this chapter; and

15 (C) complete remediation and additional training established
16 by the board based on the length of time the certificate of
17 registration has been expired.

18 SECTION 14. IC 25-5.1-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006,
19 SECTION 421, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
20 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e),**
21 **after a three (3) year renewal cycle ending December 31, 2017,** a
22 license issued by the board expires on a date established by the agency
23 under IC 25-1-5-4 in each ~~even-numbered~~ **odd-numbered** year.

24 (b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee not
25 later than the expiration date of the license.

26 (c) If an individual fails to timely pay a renewal fee as required by
27 subsection (b), the individual's license becomes invalid without any
28 action being taken by the board.

29 SECTION 15. IC 25-6.1-2-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
30 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. ~~Meetings.~~ (a) The
31 commission shall, ~~meet at its first meeting~~ **meet at its first meeting** each ~~January,~~ **year,** at a
32 time and place established by the chairman, ~~to~~ conduct an election of
33 officers and such other business as may be appropriate. The
34 commission shall also meet upon the call of the chairman or upon the
35 request of any two (2) members of the commission. The secretary shall
36 provide reasonable notice of the time and place of each meeting to all
37 members.

38 (b) Three (3) members constitute a quorum for the purpose of
39 transacting business. A majority vote of the commission is necessary
40 to bind the commission.

41 SECTION 16. IC 25-6.1-2-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
42 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) At the **first**

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



1 meeting ~~to be~~ held each ~~January, year~~, the commission shall elect from
 2 its membership a chairman and a vice chairman. Each officer shall
 3 serve for a term of one (1) year and until ~~his~~ **the officer's** successor is
 4 elected.

5 (b) The chairman shall preside at all meetings of the commission.

6 (c) The vice chairman shall act as presiding officer in the absence
 7 of the chairman and shall perform such other duties as the chairman
 8 may direct.

9 (d) The commission shall be provided with an executive secretary
 10 by the licensing agency. The person provided may not be a member of
 11 the commission.

12 (e) The executive secretary, through the licensing agency, shall:

13 (1) notify all members of meetings;

14 (2) keep a record of all meetings of the commission, votes taken
 15 by the commission, and other proceedings, transactions,
 16 communications, official acts, and records of the commission; and

17 (3) perform other duties as the chairman directs.

18 SECTION 17. IC 25-6.1-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.59-2014,
 19 SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 20 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) Every individual, before acting as an
 21 auctioneer, must obtain a license from the commission.

22 (b) An applicant for a license must:

23 (1) be at least eighteen (18) years of age;

24 (2) have completed at least eighty (80) actual hours of auction
 25 instruction from a course provider approved by the commission;

26 (3) not have a conviction for:

27 (A) an act which would constitute a ground for disciplinary
 28 sanction under IC 25-1-11; or

29 (B) a felony that has a direct bearing on the applicant's ability
 30 to practice competently.

31 (c) Auction instruction required under subsection (b) must provide
 32 the applicant with knowledge of all of the following:

33 (1) The value of real estate and of various goods commonly sold
 34 at an auction.

35 (2) Bid calling.

36 (3) Sale preparation, sale advertising, and sale summary.

37 (4) Mathematics.

38 (5) The provisions of this article and the commission's rules.

39 (6) Any other subject matter approved by the commission.

40 (d) An individual seeking an initial license as an auctioneer under
 41 this article shall file with the commission a completed application on
 42 the form prescribed by the commission. When filing an application for



1 an auctioneer license, each individual shall pay a nonrefundable
2 examination fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2.

3 (e) When applying for a renewal of an auctioneer license, each
4 individual shall do the following:

5 (1) Apply in a manner required by the commission, including
6 certification by the applicant that the applicant has complied with
7 the requirements of IC 25-6.1-9-8, unless the commission has
8 granted the applicant a waiver under IC 25-6.1-9-9.

9 (2) Pay the renewal fee established by the commission under
10 IC 25-1-8-2.

11 (f) Upon the receipt of a completed application for an initial or a
12 renewal license, the commission shall examine the application and may
13 verify the information contained therein.

14 (g) An applicant who is seeking an initial license must pass an
15 examination approved by the commission that covers subjects and
16 topics of knowledge required to practice as an auctioneer. The
17 commission shall hold examinations as the commission may prescribe.

18 (h) The commission shall issue an auctioneer's license, in such form
19 as it may prescribe, to each individual who meets all of the
20 requirements for licensing and pays the appropriate fees.

21 (i) Auctioneer licenses shall be issued for a term of four (4) years.
22 **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license expires at midnight on the date
23 established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and every fourth
24 year thereafter, unless renewed before that date. If the license has
25 expired, it may be reinstated not later than four (4) years after the date
26 it expired if the license holder meets the requirements of
27 IC 25-1-8-6(c).

28 (j) If a license has expired for a period of more than four (4) years,
29 the holder of the license may have the license reinstated by satisfying
30 the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

31 (k) The commission may waive the requirement that a nonresident
32 applicant pass an examination and that the nonresident submit written
33 statements by two (2) individuals, if the nonresident applicant:

34 (1) is licensed to act as an auctioneer in the state of the applicant's
35 domicile;

36 (2) submits with the application a duly certified letter of
37 certification issued by the licensing board of the applicant's
38 domiciliary state;

39 (3) is a resident of a state whose licensing requirements are
40 substantially equal to the requirements of Indiana;

41 (4) is a resident of a state that grants the same privileges to the
42 licensees of Indiana; and



1 (5) includes with the application an irrevocable consent that
 2 actions may be commenced against the applicant. The consent
 3 shall stipulate that service of process or pleadings on the
 4 commission shall be taken and held in all courts as valid and
 5 binding as if service of process had been made upon the applicant
 6 personally within this state. If any process or pleading mentioned
 7 in this subsection is served upon the commission, it shall be by
 8 duplicate copies. One (1) of the duplicate copies shall be filed in
 9 the office of the commission and one (1) shall be immediately
 10 forwarded by the commission by registered or certified mail to the
 11 applicant against whom the process or pleadings are directed.

12 (l) The commission may enter into a reciprocal agreement with
 13 another state concerning nonresident applicants.

14 SECTION 18. IC 25-8-4-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013,
 15 SECTION 29, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 16 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e), and** except for
 17 an instructor license issued under subsection (c) or IC 25-8-6-1, a
 18 license issued under this article expires on a date specified by the
 19 licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires four (4) years after the
 20 initial expiration date.

21 (b) A license issued to an instructor under IC 25-8-6-1 expires at the
 22 time that the instructor's practitioner license expires. The board shall
 23 renew an instructor's license under this subsection concurrently with
 24 the instructor's practitioner license.

25 (c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, initial provisional licenses are valid
 26 for a length of time determined by the board, but not to exceed two (2)
 27 years.

28 SECTION 19. IC 25-8-4-19, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 29 SECTION 22, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 30 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 19. The board shall renew a license if the license
 31 holder pays the fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 to renew
 32 the license before the license is to expire. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the**
 33 **expiration and renewal of a license issued under this article.**

34 SECTION 20. IC 25-8-13-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013,
 35 SECTION 84, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 36 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
 37 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for an application to issue or renew a
 38 beauty culture school license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance**
 39 **and renewal of a beauty culture school license.**

40 (b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
 41 reinstating a beauty culture school license.

42 SECTION 21. IC 25-8-13-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.84-2010,



1 SECTION 51, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
2 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
3 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an instructor
4 license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an
5 instructor license.**

6 (b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
7 reinstating an instructor license.

8 SECTION 22. IC 25-8-13-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013,
9 SECTION 85, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
10 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
11 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a beauty culture
12 salon license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of
13 a beauty culture salon license.**

14 (b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
15 reinstating a beauty culture salon license.

16 SECTION 23. IC 25-8-13-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006,
17 SECTION 50, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
18 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
19 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an
20 applicant for a cosmetologist license.

21 (b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
22 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a cosmetologist license.
23 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a
24 cosmetologist license.**

25 (c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
26 reinstating a cosmetologist license.

27 (d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
28 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing an Indiana cosmetologist license to a person
29 who holds a license from another jurisdiction that meets the
30 requirements set forth in IC 25-8-4-2.

31 SECTION 24. IC 25-8-13-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006,
32 SECTION 51, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
33 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
34 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an
35 applicant for an electrologist license.

36 (b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
37 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an electrologist license.
38 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an
39 electrologist license.**

40 (c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
41 reinstating an electrologist license.

42 (d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under



1 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds an electrologist
 2 license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under
 3 IC 25-8-4-2.

4 SECTION 25. IC 25-8-13-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006,
 5 SECTION 52, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 6 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
 7 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an
 8 applicant for a manicurist license.

9 (b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
 10 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a manicurist license.
 11 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a manicurist**
 12 **license.**

13 (c) The board shall charge a fee required under IC 25-1-8-6 for
 14 reinstating a manicurist license.

15 (d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
 16 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds a manicurist
 17 license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under
 18 IC 25-8-4-2.

19 SECTION 26. IC 25-8-13-11, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006,
 20 SECTION 53, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 21 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by
 22 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an
 23 applicant for an esthetician license.

24 (b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
 25 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an esthetician license.
 26 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an esthetician**
 27 **license.**

28 (c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for
 29 reinstating an esthetician license.

30 (d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
 31 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds an esthetician
 32 license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under
 33 IC 25-8-4-2.

34 SECTION 27. IC 25-8-13-12.1, AS ADDED BY P.L.84-2010,
 35 SECTION 53, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 36 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12.1. (a) The board shall establish fees under
 37 IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for a barber
 38 license.

39 (b) The board shall establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or
 40 renewing a barber license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and**
 41 **renewal of a barber license.**

42 (c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for



- 1 reinstating a barber license.
- 2 (d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under
3 IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds a barber license
4 from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under
5 IC 25-8-4-2.
- 6 SECTION 28. IC 25-8-15.4-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
7 SECTION 24, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
8 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
9 under this chapter expires every fourth year on a date established by the
10 licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.
- 11 (b) The board shall renew a license issued under this chapter if the
12 person that operates the facility pays the fee for renewal established by
13 the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on or before the date established by the
14 licensing agency.
- 15 (c) If the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before
16 the renewal date established by the licensing agency, the license
17 expires and becomes invalid without any action by the board.
- 18 SECTION 29. IC 25-10-1-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
19 SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
20 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
21 under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date described under
22 subsection (b).
- 23 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all licenses issued by the board shall
24 be subject to renewal biennially on a date established by the licensing
25 agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A renewal license fee established by the
26 board under IC 25-1-8-2 must be paid to the board on or before the date
27 established by the licensing agency, and if not paid on or before that
28 date, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken
29 by the board.
- 30 (c) An individual whose license has been expired for not more than
31 three (3) years may have the license reinstated upon meeting the
32 requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).
- 33 (d) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license
34 under this chapter expired, the individual holding the license may have
35 the license reinstated by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement
36 under IC 25-1-8-6(d).
- 37 (e) A license must be displayed in the office or the place of practice
38 of the licensee.
- 39 (f) Each applicant for renewal shall furnish evidence of attendance
40 during each preceding licensing year at not less than one (1)
41 chiropractic educational conference or seminar approved by the board.
42 The conference or seminar may be conducted by an established



1 chiropractic organization or college. This requirement does not apply
 2 to the applicant's first licensing year. If an applicant fails to comply
 3 with this subsection, the applicant's license expires and becomes
 4 invalid at midnight of the renewal date and may be reinstated only upon
 5 application and the payment of a fee established by the board and
 6 proper showing to the board that there has been a makeup by the
 7 applicant of the omitted educational work.

8 (g) Any chiropractor licensed to practice chiropractic in this state
 9 who intends to retire from practice shall notify the board in writing of
 10 the chiropractor's intention to retire and shall surrender the license to
 11 the board. Upon receipt of this notice and license, the board shall
 12 record the fact that the chiropractor is retired and excuse the person
 13 from further payment of license renewal fees and attendance at license
 14 renewal seminars. If any chiropractor surrenders the license to practice
 15 chiropractic in this state, the chiropractor's reinstatement may be
 16 considered by the board on the chiropractor's written request. If any
 17 disciplinary proceedings under this chapter are pending against a
 18 chiropractor, the chiropractor may not surrender the license without the
 19 written approval of the board.

20 (h) Any chiropractor licensed to practice chiropractic in this state
 21 who intends to become inactive in the practice of chiropractic shall
 22 notify the board in writing that the chiropractor will not maintain an
 23 office or practice chiropractic in Indiana. The board shall then classify
 24 the chiropractor's license as inactive. The renewal fee of the inactive
 25 license is one-half (1/2) of the license renewal fee, and the chiropractor
 26 shall not be required to attend license renewal seminars. If a
 27 chiropractor holding an inactive license intends to maintain an office
 28 or practice chiropractic, the chiropractor shall notify the board of that
 29 intent. The board may reinstate that chiropractor's license upon
 30 notification and receipt of:

- 31 (1) an application;
- 32 (2) payment of the current renewal fee;
- 33 (3) payment of the current reinstatement fee; and
- 34 (4) evidence of attendance of one (1) educational conference
 35 approved by the board for each year or portion of a year of
 36 inactive license classification.

37 (i) The board shall discipline a practitioner of the chiropractic in
 38 accordance with IC 25-1-9.

39 SECTION 30. IC 25-13-1-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.264-2013,
 40 SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 41 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) A license to practice dental hygiene in
 42 Indiana may be issued to candidates who pass an examination



1 administered by an entity that has been approved by the board. **Subject**
 2 **to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the license shall be valid for the remainder of the
 3 renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

4 (b) Prior to the issuance of the license, the applicant shall pay a fee
 5 set by the board under section 5 of this chapter. **Subject to**
 6 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board expires on a date
 7 specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency under
 8 IC 25-1-5-4(k) of each even-numbered year.

9 (c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, an applicant for license renewal must
 10 satisfy the following conditions:

11 (1) Pay:

12 (A) the renewal fee set by the board under section 5 of this
 13 chapter on or before the renewal date specified by the Indiana
 14 professional licensing agency in each even-numbered year;
 15 and

16 (B) a compliance fee of twenty dollars (\$20) to be deposited in
 17 the dental compliance fund established by IC 25-14-1-3.7.

18 (2) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, provide the board with a sworn
 19 statement signed by the applicant attesting that the applicant has
 20 fulfilled the continuing education requirements under IC 25-13-2.

21 (3) Be currently certified or successfully complete a course in
 22 basic life support through a program approved by the board. The
 23 board may waive the basic life support requirement for applicants
 24 who show reasonable cause.

25 (d) If the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before
 26 the renewal date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency,
 27 the license expires and becomes invalid without any action by the
 28 board.

29 (e) A license invalidated under subsection (d) may be reinstated by
 30 the board in three (3) years or less after such invalidation if the holder
 31 of the license meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

32 (f) If a license remains invalid under subsection (d) for more than
 33 three (3) years, the holder of the invalid license may obtain a reinstated
 34 license by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under
 35 IC 25-1-8-6(d). The board may require the licensee to participate in
 36 remediation or pass an examination administered by an entity approved
 37 by the board.

38 (g) The board may require the holder of an invalid license who files
 39 an application under this subsection to appear before the board and
 40 explain why the holder failed to renew the license.

41 (h) The board may adopt rules under section 5 of this chapter
 42 establishing requirements for the reinstatement of a license that has



1 been invalidated for more than three (3) years.

2 (i) The license to practice must be displayed at all times in plain
3 view of the patients in the office where the holder is engaged in
4 practice. No person may lawfully practice dental hygiene who does not
5 possess a license and its current renewal.

6 (j) Biennial renewals of licenses are subject to the provisions of
7 IC 25-1-2.

8 SECTION 31. IC 25-14-1-3.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012,
9 SECTION 171, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
10 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.1. (a) A dentist must have a
11 permit to administer:

12 (1) general anesthesia/deep sedation; or

13 (2) moderate sedation using a parenteral route of administration;
14 to a patient.

15 (b) The board shall establish by rule the educational and training
16 requirements for the issuance and renewal of a permit required by
17 subsection (a).

18 (c) The board shall establish the requirements for a program of
19 education and training for pediatric anesthesiology.

20 (d) The requirements for a permit issued under this section must be
21 based on the current American Dental Association's "Guidelines for
22 Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students",
23 as adopted by the American Dental Association House of Delegates.

24 (e) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a permit issued under this section
25 must be renewed biennially.

26 SECTION 32. IC 25-14-1-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.264-2013,
27 SECTION 11, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
28 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless
29 renewed, a license issued by the board expires on a date specified by
30 the agency under IC 25-1-5-4(k). An applicant for renewal shall pay the
31 renewal fee set by the board under section 13 of this chapter on or
32 before the renewal date specified by the agency. In addition to the
33 renewal fee set by the board, an applicant for renewal shall pay a
34 compliance fee of twenty dollars (\$20) to be deposited in the dental
35 compliance fund established by section 3.7 of this chapter.

36 (b) The license shall be properly displayed at all times in the office
37 of the person named as the holder of the license, and a person may not
38 be considered to be in legal practice if the person does not possess the
39 license and renewal card.

40 (c) If a holder of a dental license does not renew the license on or
41 before the renewal date specified by the agency, without any action by
42 the board the license together with any related renewal card is



1 invalidated.

2 (d) Except as provided in section 27.1 of this chapter, a license
3 invalidated under subsection (c) may be reinstated by the board in three
4 (3) years or less after its invalidation if the holder of the license meets
5 the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

6 (e) Except as provided in section 27.1 of this chapter, if a license
7 remains invalid under subsection (c) for more than three (3) years, the
8 holder of the invalid license may obtain a reinstated license by
9 satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

10 (f) The board may require the holder of an invalid license who files
11 an application under this subsection to appear before the board and
12 explain why the holder failed to renew the license.

13 (g) The board may adopt rules under section 13 of this chapter
14 establishing requirements for the reinstatement of a license that has
15 been invalidated for more than three (3) years. The fee for a duplicate
16 license to practice as a dentist is subject to IC 25-1-8-2.

17 (h) Biennial renewal of licenses is subject to IC 25-1-2.

18 (i) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, an application for renewal of a license
19 under this section must contain a sworn statement signed by the
20 applicant attesting that the applicant has fulfilled the continuing
21 education requirements under IC 25-14-3.

22 SECTION 33. IC 25-14.3-4 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1,
23 2015]. (License Revocation or Suspension).

24 SECTION 34. IC 25-14.5-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006,
25 SECTION 437, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
26 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a
27 certificate issued by the board expires on a date established by the
28 agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next even-numbered year following
29 the year in which the certificate was issued.

30 (b) An individual may renew a certificate by paying a renewal fee
31 on or before the expiration date of the certificate.

32 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
33 expiration date of a certificate, the certificate becomes invalid.

34 SECTION 35. IC 25-14.5-6-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
35 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. A certified dietitian
36 may renew a certificate by:

- 37 (1) paying a renewal fee as set by the board; and
38 (2) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, providing a sworn statement attesting
39 that the certified dietitian has completed the continuing education
40 required by the board.

41 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a certificate**
42 **under this article.**



1 SECTION 36. IC 25-14.5-6-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
 2 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The board shall
 3 mail an application for renewal to a certified dietitian at least ~~sixty (60)~~
 4 **ninety (90)** days before the date on which the certified dietitian's
 5 certificate expires.

6 (b) The application must be mailed to the certified dietitian's most
 7 recent address as it appears on the record of the board.

8 (c) A certified dietitian filing for renewal of a certificate must:

- 9 (1) satisfactorily complete the renewal application;
 10 (2) return the application to the board; and
 11 (3) submit to the board the required renewal fee;

12 before expiration of the certified dietitian's current certificate.

13 (d) Upon receipt of the application and fee submitted under
 14 subsection (c), the board shall:

- 15 (1) verify the accuracy of the application;
 16 (2) determine whether the continuing education requirement has
 17 been met; and
 18 (3) verify that all other requirements under this article have been
 19 met.

20 (e) When the board is satisfied that all conditions under subsection
 21 (d) have been met, the board shall issue to the applicant a notice of
 22 certificate renewal that shall be valid for two (2) years.

23 SECTION 37. IC 25-15-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 24 SECTION 31, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 25 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e) and** except as
 26 provided in subsection (b), a license issued under this article expires on
 27 the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

28 (b) A funeral director intern license expires two (2) years after it is
 29 issued by the board.

30 SECTION 38. IC 25-17.3-4-5, AS ADDED BY P.L.177-2009,
 31 SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 32 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
 33 by the board expires on the date established by the agency under
 34 IC 25-1-5-4 in even-numbered years.

35 (b) To renew a license, a genetic counselor shall:

- 36 (1) pay a renewal fee not later than the expiration date of the
 37 license; and
 38 (2) meet all other requirements for renewal under this chapter.

39 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
 40 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid without further
 41 action by the board.

42 (d) If an individual holds a license that has been invalid for not more



1 than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the license if the
2 individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

3 (e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license
4 has expired, the individual who holds the expired license may seek
5 reinstatement of the license by satisfying the requirements for
6 reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

7 SECTION 39. IC 25-19-1-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
8 SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
9 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every holder of
10 a health facility administrator's license shall renew the license on the
11 date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. The
12 renewals shall be granted as a matter of course, unless the board finds,
13 after due notice and hearing, that the applicant has acted or failed to act
14 in a manner or under circumstances that would constitute grounds for
15 nonrenewal, suspension, or revocation of a license.

16 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a health facility administrator's
17 license expires at midnight on the renewal date specified by the Indiana
18 professional licensing agency. Failure to renew a license on or before
19 the renewal date automatically renders the license invalid.

20 (c) A person who fails to renew a license before it expires and
21 becomes invalid at midnight of the renewal date shall be reinstated by
22 the board if the person applies for reinstatement not later than three (3)
23 years after the expiration of the license and meets the requirements
24 under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

25 (d) The board may reinstate a person who applies to reinstate a
26 license under this section more than three (3) years after the date the
27 license expires and becomes invalid if the person applies to the board
28 for reinstatement and meets the requirements for reinstatement
29 established by the board under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

30 (e) The board may require an applicant under subsection (d) to
31 appear before the board to explain the applicant's failure to renew.

32 SECTION 40. IC 25-20-1-12, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
33 SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
34 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) The committee shall issue hearing aid
35 dealer certificates of registration. ~~that,~~ **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**,
36 **hearing aid dealer certificates of registration** expire biennially on
37 the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. To
38 renew a hearing aid dealer certificate of registration, the holder of the
39 certificate must pay a renewal fee set by the committee on or before the
40 date established by the licensing agency.

41 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a certificate does not
42 renew the holder's hearing aid dealer certificate of registration on or



1 before the date established by the licensing agency, the certificate
2 expires without any action taken by the board.

3 (c) A holder of a hearing aid dealer certificate of registration that
4 expires under this section may have the certificate reinstated by the
5 committee if, not later than three (3) years after the license expires, the
6 holder meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

7 (d) A person who applies for reinstatement of a certificate of
8 registration under this section more than three (3) years after the date
9 the registration expires and becomes invalid may apply for
10 reinstatement by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under
11 IC 25-1-8-6(d).

12 SECTION 41. IC 25-20.2-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.127-2012,
13 SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
14 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The board is composed of seven (7)
15 members appointed by the governor as follows:

16 (1) Four (4) members, each of whom:

17 (A) is licensed in Indiana as a home inspector; and

18 (B) has been actively engaged in performing home inspections
19 in Indiana for at least five (5) years immediately before the
20 member's appointment to the board.

21 (2) One (1) member who:

22 (A) is a home builder; and

23 (B) has been actively engaged in home building in Indiana for
24 at least five (5) years immediately before the member's
25 appointment to the board.

26 (3) One (1) member who:

27 (A) is a licensed real estate broker under IC 25-34.1-3-4.1; and

28 (B) has been actively engaged in selling, trading, exchanging,
29 optioning, leasing, renting, managing, listing, or appraising
30 residential real estate in Indiana for at least five (5) years
31 immediately before the member's appointment to the board.

32 (4) One (1) member who represents the public at large and is not
33 associated with the home inspection, home building, or real estate
34 business other than as a consumer.

35 (b) The members of the board must be residents of Indiana.

36 (c) **All members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of**
37 **the governor.**

38 SECTION 42. IC 25-20.2-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.194-2005,
39 SECTION 59, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
40 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license for a home
41 inspector issued under this article expires on a date established by the
42 licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and shall be renewed biennially



1 upon payment of the required renewal fees.

2 SECTION 43. IC 25-20.2-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
3 SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
4 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) An individual who applies to renew a
5 license as a licensed home inspector must:

6 (1) furnish evidence showing successful completion of the
7 continuing education requirements of this chapter; and

8 (2) pay the renewal fee established by the board.

9 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not
10 renew the license on or before the renewal date specified by the
11 licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any
12 action by the board.

13 (c) A license may be reinstated by the board not later than (3) years
14 after the expiration of the license if the applicant for reinstatement
15 meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

16 (d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
17 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder meets the
18 requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

19 SECTION 44. IC 25-20.7-2-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.177-2009,
20 SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
21 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. A registered interior designer who continues
22 to actively practice interior design shall:

23 (1) renew the registration not more than ninety (90) days before
24 the expiration of the registration; and

25 (2) pay the renewal fee under IC 25-20.7-3.

26 **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the renewal of the registration of a
27 registered interior designer under this article.**

28 SECTION 45. IC 25-21.5-8-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
29 SECTION 39, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
30 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate of
31 registration expires biennially on the date established by the licensing
32 agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

33 (b) An individual may renew a certificate of registration by paying
34 a renewal fee on or before the expiration date established by the
35 licensing agency.

36 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
37 expiration date of a certificate of registration, the certificate of
38 registration becomes invalid without any action of the board.

39 (d) A certificate of registration may be reinstated by the board not
40 later than three (3) years after its expiration if the applicant for
41 reinstatement meets the requirements for reinstatement under
42 IC 25-1-8-6(c).



1 (e) If a certificate of registration has been expired for more than
 2 three (3) years, the certificate of registration may be reinstated by the
 3 board if the holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under
 4 IC 25-1-8-6(d).

5 SECTION 46. IC 25-21.8-6-1, AS ADDED BY P.L.200-2007,
 6 SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 7 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certification
 8 issued by the board is valid for four (4) years.

9 (b) A certification **expires**:

10 (1) **expires** at midnight on the date established by the licensing
 11 agency under IC 25-1-6-4, **subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**; and

12 (2) every four (4) years thereafter, unless renewed before that
 13 date.

14 SECTION 47. IC 25-22.5-2-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.154-2012,
 15 SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 16 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The board shall implement a program to
 17 investigate and assess a civil penalty of not more than one thousand
 18 dollars (\$1,000) against a physician licensed under this article for the
 19 following violations:

20 (1) Licensure renewal fraud.

21 (2) Improper termination of a physician and patient relationship.

22 (3) Practicing with an expired medical license.

23 (4) Providing office based anesthesia without the proper
 24 accreditation.

25 (5) Failure to perform duties required for issuing birth or death
 26 certificates.

27 (6) Failure to disclose, or negligent omission of, documentation
 28 requested for licensure renewal.

29 (7) **Failure to complete or timely transmit a pregnancy
 30 termination form under IC 16-34-2-5, with each failure
 31 constituting a separate violation.**

32 (b) An individual who is investigated by the board and found by the
 33 board to have committed a violation specified in subsection (a) may
 34 appeal the determination made by the board in accordance with
 35 IC 4-21.5.

36 (c) In accordance with the federal Health Care Quality Improvement
 37 Act (42 U.S.C. 11132), the board shall report a disciplinary board
 38 action that is subject to reporting to the National Practitioner Data
 39 Bank. However, the board may not report board action against a
 40 physician for only an administrative penalty described in subsection
 41 (a). The board's action concerning disciplinary action or an
 42 administrative penalty described in subsection (a) shall be conducted



1 at a hearing that is open to the public.

2 (d) The physician compliance fund is established to provide funds
3 for administering and enforcing the investigation of violations specified
4 in subsection (a). The fund shall be administered by the Indiana
5 professional licensing agency.

6 (e) The expenses of administering the physician compliance fund
7 shall be paid from the money in the fund. The fund consists of penalties
8 collected through investigations and assessments by the board
9 concerning violations specified in subsection (a). Money in the fund at
10 the end of a state fiscal year does not revert to the state general fund.

11 SECTION 48. IC 25-22.5-7-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
12 SECTION 42, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
13 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
14 under this article expires biennially on the date established by the
15 licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. On or before the date established
16 by the licensing agency, an applicant for renewal shall pay the biennial
17 renewal fee set by the board under IC 25-1-8-2.

18 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not
19 renew the license on or before the date established by the licensing
20 agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action
21 taken by the board.

22 (c) A license that becomes invalid under subsection (b) may be
23 reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after the
24 invalidation if the holder of the invalid license meets the requirements
25 for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

26 (d) If a license that becomes invalid under this section is not
27 reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after its
28 invalidation, the holder of the invalid license must meet the
29 requirements for reinstatement established by the board under
30 IC 25-1-8-6(d).

31 (e) A licensee whose license is reinstated under subsection (d) may
32 be issued a provisional license under IC 25-22.5-5-2.7.

33 (f) The board may adopt rules under IC 25-22.5-2-7 establishing
34 requirements for the reinstatement of a lapsed license.

35 SECTION 49. IC 25-23-1-16.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.134-2008,
36 SECTION 31, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
37 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16.1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license to
38 practice as a registered nurse expires on October 31 in each
39 odd-numbered year. Failure to renew the license on or before the
40 expiration date will automatically render the license invalid without
41 any action by the board.

42 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license to practice as a licensed



1 practical nurse expires on October 31 in each even-numbered year.
 2 Failure to renew the license on or before the expiration date will
 3 automatically render the license invalid without any action by the
 4 board.

5 (c) The procedures and fee for renewal shall be set by the board.

6 (d) At the time of license renewal, each registered nurse and each
 7 licensed practical nurse shall pay a renewal fee, a portion of which
 8 shall be for the rehabilitation of impaired registered nurses and
 9 impaired licensed practical nurses. The lesser of the following amounts
 10 from fees collected under this subsection shall be deposited in the
 11 impaired nurses account of the state general fund established by section
 12 34 of this chapter:

13 (1) Twenty-five percent (25%) of the license renewal fee per
 14 license renewed under this section.

15 (2) The cost per license to operate the impaired nurses program,
 16 as determined by the Indiana professional licensing agency.

17 SECTION 50. IC 25-23-1-18 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
 18 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 18. (a) **Subject to**
 19 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, any person who fails to renew a license before it
 20 expires shall be reinstated by the board upon meeting the requirements
 21 under IC 25-1-8-6.

22 (b) A person who fails to apply to reinstate a license under this
 23 section within three (3) years after the date it expires may be issued a
 24 license by the board if the person meets the requirements under
 25 IC 25-1-8-6.

26 SECTION 51. IC 25-23.4-3-4, AS ADDED BY P.L.232-2013,
 27 SECTION 20, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 28 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate
 29 issued under this chapter expires after two (2) years, on a date
 30 established by the licensing agency. Failure to renew a certificate on or
 31 before the expiration date makes the certificate invalid without any
 32 action by the board.

33 (b) To be eligible for the renewal of a certificate issued under this
 34 chapter, an individual must:

35 (1) meet continuing education requirements set by the board;

36 (2) maintain a Certified Professional Midwife credential; and

37 (3) maintain sufficient liability insurance.

38 SECTION 52. IC 25-23.5-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.197-2011,
 39 SECTION 93, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 40 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) After considering the committee's proposed
 41 rules, the board shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 establishing
 42 standards for:



- 1 (1) the competent practice of occupational therapy;
- 2 (2) the renewal of licenses issued under this article, **subject to**
- 3 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**; and
- 4 (3) standards for the administration of this article.
- 5 (b) After considering the committee's recommendations for fees, the
- 6 board shall establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2.
- 7 SECTION 53. IC 25-23.6-5-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
- 8 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to**
- 9 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board is valid for the remainder
- 10 of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.
- 11 (b) An individual may renew a license by:
- 12 (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the
- 13 license; and
- 14 (2) completing not less than twenty (20) hours of continuing
- 15 education per licensure year.
- 16 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
- 17 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.
- 18 SECTION 54. IC 25-23.6-8-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.134-2008,
- 19 SECTION 46, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
- 20 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a marriage and
- 21 family therapist license issued by the board is valid for the remainder
- 22 of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.
- 23 (b) An individual may renew a marriage and family therapist license
- 24 by:
- 25 (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the
- 26 license; and
- 27 (2) completing not less than fifteen (15) hours of continuing
- 28 education each licensure year.
- 29 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal on or before the expiration
- 30 date of a license, the license becomes invalid.
- 31 SECTION 55. IC 25-23.6-8-8.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.134-2008,
- 32 SECTION 47, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
- 33 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8.5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a marriage and
- 34 family therapist associate license issued by the board is valid for the
- 35 remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was
- 36 issued.
- 37 (b) An individual may renew a marriage and family therapist
- 38 associate license two (2) times by:
- 39 (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the
- 40 license; and
- 41 (2) completing at least fifteen (15) hours of continuing education
- 42 each licensure year.



1 (c) The board may renew a marriage and family therapist associate
2 license for additional periods based on circumstances determined by
3 the board.

4 (d) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
5 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

6 SECTION 56. IC 25-23.6-8.5-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.84-2010,
7 SECTION 66, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
8 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a mental health
9 counselor license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the
10 renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

11 (b) An individual may renew a mental health counselor license by:

12 (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the
13 license; and

14 (2) completing at least twenty (20) hours of continuing education
15 per licensure year.

16 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
17 expiration date of a mental health counselor license, the license
18 becomes invalid.

19 SECTION 57. IC 25-23.6-8.5-8.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.84-2010,
20 SECTION 67, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
21 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8.5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a mental health
22 counselor associate license issued by the board is valid for the
23 remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was
24 issued.

25 (b) An individual may renew a mental health counselor associate
26 license two (2) times by:

27 (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the
28 license; and

29 (2) completing at least twenty (20) hours of continuing education
30 per licensure year.

31 (c) The board may renew a mental health counselor associate
32 license for additional periods based on circumstances determined by
33 the board.

34 (d) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
35 expiration date of a mental health counselor associate license, the
36 license becomes invalid.

37 SECTION 58. IC 25-23.6-10.5-12, AS ADDED BY P.L.122-2009,
38 SECTION 29, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
39 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
40 by the board under this chapter is valid for the remainder of the
41 renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

42 (b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee on



1 or before the expiration date of the license.

2 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
3 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

4 SECTION 59. IC 25-23.7-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006,
5 SECTION 63, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
6 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. Notwithstanding IC 25-1-2, **but subject to**
7 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the holder of a license issued under IC 25-23.7-5 must
8 renew the license and pay the required renewal fee every four (4) years
9 after it is issued on or before the date established by the Indiana
10 professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

11 SECTION 60. IC 25-23.7-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.87-2005,
12 SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
13 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The board consists of nine (9) members
14 appointed by the governor as follows:

15 (1) Four (4) members who are installers, each of whom:

16 (A) is licensed in Indiana as an installer; and

17 (B) has been actively engaged in the installation of
18 manufactured homes for at least five (5) years immediately
19 before the member's appointment to the board.

20 (2) One (1) member who represents manufactured home
21 manufacturers with production facilities in Indiana.

22 (3) One (1) member who represents manufactured home dealers.

23 (4) One (1) member who is an operator or who is employed by an
24 operator of a mobile home community licensed under
25 IC 16-41-27.

26 (5) One (1) member who is an owner of or who is employed by a
27 primary inspection agency, a designation issued under 24 CFR
28 3282 by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
29 Development.

30 (6) One (1) member who represents the general public and who
31 is not associated with the manufactured home industry other than
32 as a consumer.

33 (b) The members of the board must be residents of Indiana.

34 **(c) All members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of**
35 **the governor.**

36 SECTION 61. IC 25-23.7-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
37 SECTION 44, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
38 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) An individual who applies to renew a
39 license as an installer of a manufactured home must:

40 (1) furnish evidence showing successful completion of the
41 continuing education requirements of this chapter; and

42 (2) pay the renewal fee established by the board.



1 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not
 2 renew the license before the date established by the licensing agency,
 3 the certificate expires without any action taken by the board.

4 (c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years,
 5 the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license
 6 meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

7 (d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
 8 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets
 9 the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

10 SECTION 62. IC 25-24-1-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 11 SECTION 45, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 12 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) In each even-numbered year, the Indiana
 13 professional licensing agency shall issue a ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** day
 14 notice of expiration and a license renewal application in accordance
 15 with IC 25-1-2-6 to each optometrist licensed in Indiana. The
 16 application shall be mailed to the last known address of the optometrist.

17 (b) The payment of the renewal fee must be made on or before the
 18 date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. **Subject to**
 19 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the applicant's license expires and becomes invalid if
 20 the applicant has not paid the renewal fee by the date established by the
 21 licensing agency.

22 (c) The license shall be reinstated by the board not later than three
 23 (3) years after its expiration if the applicant for reinstatement meets the
 24 requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

25 (d) Reinstatement of an expired license after the expiration of the
 26 three (3) year period provided in subsection (c) is dependent upon the
 27 applicant satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under
 28 IC 25-1-8-6(d).

29 (e) The board may classify a license as inactive if the board receives
 30 written notification from a licensee stating that the licensee will not
 31 maintain an office or practice optometry in Indiana. The renewal fee for
 32 an inactive license is one-half (1/2) the license renewal fee set by the
 33 board under section 1 of this chapter.

34 (f) The holder of an inactive license is not required to fulfill
 35 continuing education requirements set by the board. The board may
 36 issue a license to the holder of an inactive license if the applicant:

- 37 (1) pays the renewal fee set by the board under section 1 of this
 38 chapter;
 39 (2) pays the reinstatement fee set by the board under section 1 of
 40 this chapter; and
 41 (3) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, attests that the applicant obtained the
 42 continuing education required by the board under section 1 of this



1 chapter for each year, or portion of a year during which the
2 applicant's license has been classified as inactive.

3 SECTION 63. IC 25-26-13-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
4 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The Indiana
5 board of pharmacy is created. It shall consist of seven (7) members, not
6 more than four (4) of whom may be from the same political party,
7 appointed by the governor for terms of four (4) years. One (1) member
8 of the board, to represent the general public, must be a resident of this
9 state who has never been associated with pharmacy in any way other
10 than as a consumer. Except for the member representing the general
11 public, the members must be pharmacists in good standing of
12 recognized experience and ability from varied practice settings who
13 hold a current license to practice pharmacy in Indiana. One (1) member
14 of the board must be a practicing hospital pharmacist. A person
15 employed as a full-time staff member or as a professor at a school of
16 pharmacy may not serve on the board. If a member leaves the board for
17 any reason before the end of the member's term, the member's
18 successor shall serve for the unexpired portion of the term. **All**
19 **members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of the**
20 **governor.**

21 (b) Not later than ten (10) days after a member's appointment, the
22 member must subscribe by oath or affirmation to faithfully uphold the
23 duties of the member's office. If a member fails to qualify as provided,
24 a new member shall be appointed in the member's place.

25 (c) At the first meeting of each year the board shall elect from
26 among its members a president and vice president who shall perform
27 duties and have powers as the board prescribes.

28 (d) The board shall meet at least eight (8) times per year at such
29 times and places as the board selects. At each meeting the board shall
30 continue in session from day to day, for not more than five (5) days,
31 until the business of the meeting is complete. Four (4) members of the
32 board shall constitute a quorum.

33 (e) Each member of the board is entitled to compensation as
34 determined by the rules of the budget agency for each day the member
35 is actually engaged in business of the board, together with necessary
36 travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of the member's
37 duties.

38 (f) Approval by a majority of the quorum is required for any action
39 to be taken by the board.

40 SECTION 64. IC 25-26-13-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
41 SECTION 46, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
42 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a pharmacist's



1 license expires biennially on the date established by the licensing
2 agency under IC 25-1-5-4, unless renewed before that date.

3 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if an application for renewal is not
4 filed and the required fee paid before the established biennial renewal
5 date, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken
6 by the board.

7 (c) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, a statement attesting that the pharmacist
8 has met the continuing education requirements shall be submitted with
9 the application for license renewal.

10 (d) If a pharmacist surrenders the pharmacist's license to practice
11 pharmacy in Indiana, the board may subsequently consider
12 reinstatement of the pharmacist's license upon written request of the
13 pharmacist. The board may impose any conditions it considers
14 appropriate to the surrender or to the reinstatement of a surrendered
15 license. The practitioner may not voluntarily surrender the
16 practitioner's license to the board without the written consent of the
17 board if any disciplinary proceedings are pending against the
18 practitioner under this chapter or IC 25-1-9.

19 (e) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years,
20 the board may reinstate the license only if the person meets the
21 requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

22 (f) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
23 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets
24 the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

25 (g) The board may require a person who applies for a license under
26 subsection (e) to appear before the board and explain the reason the
27 person failed to renew the person's license.

28 SECTION 65. IC 25-27-1-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006,
29 SECTION 467, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
30 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The committee shall license
31 as a physical therapist each applicant who:

32 (1) successfully passes the examination provided for in this
33 chapter; and

34 (2) is otherwise qualified as required by this chapter.

35 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all licenses and certificates issued by
36 the committee expire on the date of each even-numbered year specified
37 by the Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A
38 renewal fee established by the board after consideration of any
39 recommendation of the committee must be paid biennially on or before
40 the date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency, and if
41 not paid on or before that date, the license or certificate becomes
42 invalid, without further action by the committee. A penalty fee set by



1 the board after consideration of any recommendation of the committee
 2 shall be in effect for any reinstatement within three (3) years from the
 3 original date of expiration.

4 (c) An expired license or certificate may be reinstated by the
 5 committee up to three (3) years after the expiration date if the holder
 6 of the expired license or certificate:

7 (1) pays a penalty fee set by the board after consideration of any
 8 recommendation of the committee; and

9 (2) pays the renewal fees for the biennium.

10 If more than three (3) years have elapsed since expiration of the license
 11 or certificate, the holder may be reexamined by the committee. The
 12 board may adopt, after consideration of any recommendation of the
 13 committee, rules setting requirements for reinstatement of an expired
 14 license.

15 (d) The committee may issue not more than two (2) temporary
 16 permits to a physical therapist or physical therapist's assistant. A person
 17 with a temporary permit issued under this subsection may practice
 18 physical therapy only under the direct supervision of a licensed
 19 physical therapist who is responsible for the patient. A temporary
 20 permit may be issued to any person who has paid a fee set by the board
 21 after consideration of any recommendation of the committee and who:

22 (1) has a valid license from another state to practice physical
 23 therapy, or has a valid certificate from another state to act as a
 24 physical therapist's assistant; or

25 (2) has applied for and been approved by the committee to take
 26 the examination for licensure or certification, has not previously
 27 failed the licensure or certification examination in Indiana or any
 28 other state, and has:

29 (A) graduated from a school or program of physical therapy;
 30 or

31 (B) graduated from a two (2) year college level education
 32 program for physical therapist's assistants that meets the
 33 standards set by the committee.

34 The applicant must take the examination within the time limits set by
 35 the committee.

36 (e) A temporary permit issued under subsection (d) expires when
 37 the applicant becomes licensed or certified, or approved for
 38 endorsement licensing or certification by the committee, or when the
 39 application for licensure has been disapproved, whichever occurs first.
 40 An application for licensure or certification is disapproved and any
 41 temporary permit based upon the application expires when the
 42 applicant fails to take the examination within the time limits set by the



1 committee or when the committee receives notification of the
 2 applicant's failure to pass any required examination in Indiana or any
 3 other state.

4 (f) A holder of a license or certificate under this chapter who intends
 5 to retire from practice shall notify the committee in writing. Upon
 6 receipt of the notice, the committee shall record the fact that the holder
 7 of the license or certificate is retired and release the person from
 8 further payment of renewal fees. If a holder of the license or certificate
 9 surrenders a license or certificate, reinstatement of the license or
 10 certificate may be considered by the committee upon written request.
 11 The committee may impose conditions it considers appropriate to the
 12 surrender or reinstatement of a surrendered license or certificate. A
 13 license or certificate may not be surrendered to the committee without
 14 the written consent of the committee if any disciplinary proceedings are
 15 pending against a holder of a license or certificate under this chapter.

16 SECTION 66. IC 25-27.5-4-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2008,
 17 SECTION 192, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 18 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a
 19 license issued by the committee expires on a date established by the
 20 Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next
 21 even-numbered year following the year in which the license was issued.

22 (b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee on
 23 or before the expiration date of the license.

24 (c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the
 25 expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid and must be
 26 returned to the committee.

27 SECTION 67. IC 25-28.5-1-22, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 28 SECTION 55, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 29 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every license
 30 or certificate of registration issued under this chapter expires on a date
 31 established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and shall be
 32 renewed biennially thereafter upon payment of the required renewal
 33 fees.

34 (b) Applications for renewal shall be filed with the commission in
 35 the form and manner provided by the commission. The application
 36 shall be accompanied by the required renewal fee. The commission,
 37 upon the receipt of the application for renewal and the required renewal
 38 fee, shall issue to the renewal applicant a license or certificate of
 39 registration in the category said applicant has previously held. **Subject**
 40 **to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license is renewed, a license issued by the
 41 commission expires on the date specified by the licensing agency under
 42 IC 25-1-6-4.



1 (c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license or certificate of registration
 2 lapses without any action by the commission if an application for
 3 renewal has not been filed and the required fee has not been paid by the
 4 established biennial renewal date.

5 (d) If a license or certificate of registration has been expired for not
 6 more than three (3) years, the license or certificate of registration may
 7 be reinstated by the commission if the holder of the license or
 8 certificate of registration meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

9 (e) If a license or certificate of registration has been expired for
 10 more than three (3) years, the license or certificate of registration may
 11 be reinstated by the commission if the holder of the license or
 12 certificate of registration meets the requirements for reinstatement
 13 under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

14 SECTION 68. IC 25-29-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006,
 15 SECTION 473, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 16 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a
 17 license to practice podiatric medicine expires on a date established by
 18 the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in each odd-numbered year.

19 SECTION 69. IC 25-30-1-16, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 20 SECTION 57, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 21 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license
 22 is renewed, a license issued under this chapter expires on a date
 23 specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires every
 24 four (4) years after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal
 25 shall pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on
 26 or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

27 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not
 28 renew the license by the date specified by the licensing agency, the
 29 license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the
 30 board.

31 (c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years,
 32 the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license
 33 meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

34 (d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
 35 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets
 36 the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

37 SECTION 70. IC 25-30-1.3-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 38 SECTION 58, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 39 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license
 40 is renewed, a license issued under this chapter expires on a date
 41 specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires every
 42 four (4) years after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal



1 shall pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on
2 or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

3 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not
4 renew the license by the date specified by the licensing agency, the
5 license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the
6 board.

7 (c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years,
8 the license may be reinstated if the holder of the license meets the
9 requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

10 (d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
11 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets
12 the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

13 SECTION 71. IC 25-31-1-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
14 SECTION 59, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
15 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a
16 ~~certificate is~~ renewed, a certificate issued under this chapter expires on
17 a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires
18 biennially after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal
19 shall submit an application in the manner prescribed by the board and
20 pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on or
21 before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

22 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a certificate does not
23 renew the certificate by the date specified by the licensing agency, the
24 certificate expires and becomes invalid without the board taking any
25 action.

26 (c) The failure on the part of a registrant to renew a certificate does
27 not deprive the registrant of the right of renewal.

28 (d) If a certificate has been expired for not more than three (3) years,
29 the certificate may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the
30 certificate meets the requirements for reinstatement under
31 IC 25-1-8-6(c).

32 (e) If a certificate has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
33 certificate may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the certificate
34 meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

35 SECTION 72. IC 25-33-1-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
36 SECTION 61, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
37 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
38 under this article expires on the date established by the licensing
39 agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A renewal fee established by the board
40 under section 3 of this chapter must be paid by an applicant for renewal
41 before the license expires.

42 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of an expired license



1 fails to renew the license on or before the renewal date, the license
2 expires and becomes invalid without any further action by the board.

3 (c) A license that expires and becomes invalid under this section
4 may be renewed by the board not more than three (3) years after the
5 date of the expiration of the license if the applicant meets the
6 requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

7 (d) If a license has been invalidated under this section for more than
8 three (3) years, the holder of the license may have the license reinstated
9 by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

10 (e) The board may adopt rules establishing requirements for
11 reinstatement of a license invalidated for more than three (3) years
12 under this section.

13 (f) An initial license issued under this article is valid for the
14 remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date of issuance.

15 (g) The board may require a person who applies for a license under
16 subsection (d) to appear before the board and explain the reason the
17 person failed to renew the person's license.

18 SECTION 73. IC 25-34.1-3-4.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.127-2012,
19 SECTION 13, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
20 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4.1. (a) To obtain a broker license, an individual
21 must:

22 (1) be at least eighteen (18) years of age before applying for a
23 license and must not have a conviction for:

24 (A) an act that would constitute a ground for disciplinary
25 sanction under IC 25-1-11;

26 (B) a crime that has a direct bearing on the individual's ability
27 to practice competently; or

28 (C) a crime that indicates the individual has the propensity to
29 endanger the public;

30 (2) have a high school diploma or a general educational
31 development (GED) diploma under IC 20-20-6 (before its repeal)
32 or IC 22-4.1-18;

33 (3) have successfully completed an approved broker course of
34 study as prescribed in IC 25-34.1-5-5;

35 (4) apply for a license by submitting the application fee
36 prescribed by the commission and an application specifying the
37 name, address, and age of the applicant, the name under which
38 the applicant intends to conduct business, the address where the
39 business is to be conducted, proof of compliance with
40 subdivisions (2) and (3), and any other information the
41 commission requires;

42 (5) pass a written examination prepared and administered by the



- 1 commission or its duly appointed agent; and
 2 (6) within one (1) year after passing the commission examination,
 3 submit the license fee established by the commission under
 4 IC 25-1-8-2. If an individual applicant fails to file a timely license
 5 fee, the commission shall void the application and may not issue
 6 a license to that applicant unless that applicant again complies
 7 with the requirements of subdivisions (4) and (5) and this
 8 subdivision.
- 9 (b) To obtain a broker license, a partnership must:
 10 (1) have as partners only individuals who are licensed brokers;
 11 (2) have at least one (1) partner who:
 12 (A) is a resident of Indiana; or
 13 (B) is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 14 (3) cause each employee of the partnership who acts as a broker
 15 to be licensed; and
 16 (4) submit the license fee established by the commission under
 17 IC 25-1-8-2 and an application setting forth the name and
 18 residence address of each partner and the information prescribed
 19 in subsection (a)(4).
- 20 (c) To obtain a broker license, a corporation must:
 21 (1) have a licensed broker:
 22 (A) residing in Indiana who is either an officer of the
 23 corporation or, if no officer resides in Indiana, the highest
 24 ranking corporate employee in Indiana with authority to bind
 25 the corporation in real estate transactions; or
 26 (B) who is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 27 (2) cause each employee of the corporation who acts as a broker
 28 to be licensed; and
 29 (3) submit the license fee established by the commission under
 30 IC 25-1-8-2, an application setting forth the name and residence
 31 address of each officer and the information prescribed in
 32 subsection (a)(4), a copy of the certificate of incorporation, and a
 33 certificate of good standing of the corporation issued by the
 34 secretary of state.
- 35 (d) To obtain a broker license, a limited liability company must:
 36 (1) if a member-managed limited liability company:
 37 (A) have as members only individuals who are licensed
 38 brokers; and
 39 (B) have at least one (1) member who is:
 40 (i) a resident of Indiana; or
 41 (ii) a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 42 (2) if a manager-managed limited liability company, have a



- 1 licensed broker:
- 2 (A) residing in Indiana who is either a manager of the
- 3 company or, if no manager resides in Indiana, the highest
- 4 ranking company officer or employee in Indiana with authority
- 5 to bind the company in real estate transactions; or
- 6 (B) who is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
- 7 (3) cause each employee of the limited liability company who acts
- 8 as a broker to be licensed; and
- 9 (4) submit the license fee established by the commission under
- 10 IC 25-1-8-2 and an application setting forth the information
- 11 prescribed in subsection (a)(4), together with:
- 12 (A) if a member-managed company, the name and residence
- 13 address of each member; or
- 14 (B) if a manager-managed company, the name and residence
- 15 address of each manager, or of each officer if the company has
- 16 officers.
- 17 (e) Licenses granted to partnerships, corporations, and limited
- 18 liability companies are issued, expire, are renewed, and are effective on
- 19 the same terms as licenses granted to individual brokers, except as
- 20 provided in subsection (h), and except that expiration or revocation of
- 21 the license of:
- 22 (1) any partner in a partnership or all individuals in a corporation
- 23 satisfying subsection (c)(1); or
- 24 (2) a member in a member-managed limited liability company or
- 25 all individuals in a manager-managed limited liability company
- 26 satisfying subsection (d)(2);
- 27 terminates the license of that partnership, corporation, or limited
- 28 liability company.
- 29 (f) Upon the applicant's compliance with the requirements of
- 30 subsection (a), (b), or (c), the commission shall issue the applicant a
- 31 broker license and an identification card which certifies the issuance
- 32 of the license and indicates the expiration date of the license. The
- 33 license shall be displayed at the broker's place of business. For at least
- 34 two (2) years after the issuance of a license, the license must be
- 35 assigned to a managing broker. An individual who applies for a
- 36 broker's license after June 30, 2014, must, during the first two (2) years
- 37 after the license is issued, take and pass at least thirty (30) hours of
- 38 postlicensing education focused on the practical matters of real estate
- 39 transactions instead of the continuing education requirements under
- 40 IC 25-34.1-9.
- 41 (g) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless the license is renewed, a
- 42 broker license expires, for individuals, on a date specified by the



1 licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires three (3) years after the
 2 initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal shall submit an
 3 application in the manner prescribed by the commission and pay the
 4 renewal fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2 on or
 5 before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency. If the holder
 6 of a license does not renew the license by the date specified by the
 7 licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without the
 8 commission taking any action.

9 (h) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license under this
 10 section fails to renew the license on or before the date specified by the
 11 licensing agency, the license may be reinstated by the commission if
 12 the holder of the license, not later than three (3) years after the
 13 expiration of the license, meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

14 (i) If a license under this section has been expired for more than
 15 three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the commission if the
 16 holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

17 (j) A partnership, corporation, or limited liability company may not
 18 be a broker except as authorized in IC 23-1.5. An individual broker
 19 who associates with a managing broker shall immediately notify the
 20 commission of the name and business address of the managing broker
 21 and of any changes of managing broker that may occur. The
 22 commission shall then change the address of the broker on its records
 23 to that of the managing broker.

24 SECTION 74. IC 25-34.1-9-22, AS ADDED BY P.L.200-2013,
 25 SECTION 11, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 26 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. (a) Each instructor of a continuing education
 27 course under this chapter must have a permit issued by the commission.

28 (b) An instructor permit under subsection (a) must:

- 29 (1) be issued for a term of three (3) years and, **subject to**
 30 **IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, expire on a date set by the licensing agency; and
 31 (2) automatically expire if not renewed by the end of the permit
 32 period.

33 (c) An instructor issued a permit under subsection (a), must meet
 34 the following requirements:

- 35 (1) Be a licensed real estate broker or attorney licensed in Indiana,
 36 or an expert in the field working in conjunction with a licensed
 37 real estate broker or licensed attorney.
 38 (2) Each year, complete four (4) hours of continuing education
 39 approved by the commission and specific to providing real estate
 40 instruction. Hours earned under this subdivision may be used
 41 toward the completion of the continuing education requirement
 42 for a broker under IC 25-34.1-9-11.



- 1 (3) Pay applicable fees established under rules adopted by the
 2 commission under IC 4-22-2.
- 3 (4) Meet any additional requirements established by the
 4 commission under rules adopted under IC 4-22-2.
- 5 (d) If a permit expires under subsection (b)(2), to return to active
 6 status, the instructor must:
- 7 (1) successfully complete continuing education requirements set
 8 by the commission;
- 9 (2) file a renewal application;
- 10 (3) pay a renewal fee under rules adopted by the commission
 11 under IC 4-22-2; and
- 12 (4) pay any applicable late fees established under rules adopted
 13 by the commission under IC 4-22-2.
- 14 (e) Instructors approved by the commission before July 1, 2013,
 15 shall be exempted from the requirement under subsection (c)(1).
- 16 (f) The commission may deny, suspend, or revoke approval of any
 17 instructor permit issued under this chapter if the commission
 18 determines that the instructor has failed to comply with the standards
 19 established in this chapter and the rules of the commission.
- 20 SECTION 75. IC 25-34.1-11-10, AS ADDED BY P.L.77-2010,
 21 SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 22 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) The board shall issue a certificate of
 23 registration to an appraisal management company that:
- 24 (1) has furnished the information required by section 9(a) of this
 25 chapter in the manner prescribed by the board; and
- 26 (2) paid the fee required under section 9(b) of this chapter.
- 27 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate of registration issued to
 28 an appraisal management company under this chapter expires two (2)
 29 years after the date on which the certificate of registration is issued.
- 30 SECTION 76. IC 25-34.5-2-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
 31 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) Except as
 32 provided in section 11 of this chapter, the committee shall issue a
 33 license to each applicant who:
- 34 (1) successfully passes the examination provided in section 12 of
 35 this chapter; and
- 36 (2) meets the requirements of section 8 of this chapter.
- 37 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this section
 38 expires on the last day of the regular renewal cycle established under
 39 IC 25-1-5-4.
- 40 SECTION 77. IC 25-35.6-3-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008,
 41 SECTION 64, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 42 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, licenses issued



1 under this article expire, if not renewed, on the date established by the
2 licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4.

3 (b) Every person licensed under this article shall pay a fee for
4 renewal of the person's license before the date established by the
5 licensing agency.

6 (c) If the holder of a license fails to renew the license on or before
7 the date specified by the licensing agency, the license may be reinstated
8 by the board if the holder of the license, not later than three (3) years
9 after the expiration of the license, meets the requirements of
10 IC 25-1-8-6(c).

11 (d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the
12 license may be reinstated by the board if the holder meets the
13 requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

14 (e) A suspended license is subject to expiration and may be renewed
15 or reinstated as provided in this section, but a renewal or reinstatement
16 shall not entitle the licensee, while the license remains suspended and
17 until it is reinstated, to engage in the licensed activity, or in any other
18 conduct or activity in violation of the order or judgment by which the
19 license was suspended.

20 SECTION 78. IC 25-38.1-3-10, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2008,
21 SECTION 12, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
22 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license or
23 registration certificate issued under this article is valid for the
24 remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date of issuance.

25 SECTION 79. IC 25-38.1-3-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.58-2008,
26 SECTION 34, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
27 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued
28 under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date described under
29 subsection (b).

30 (b) All licenses expire on a date set by the agency in each
31 odd-numbered year but may be renewed by application to the board
32 and payment of the proper renewal fee. In accordance with
33 IC 25-1-5-4(c), the agency shall mail a notice ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)**
34 days before the expiration to each licensed veterinarian. The agency
35 shall issue a license renewal to each individual licensed under this
36 chapter if the proper fee has been received and all other requirements
37 for renewal of the license have been satisfied. Failure to renew a
38 license on or before the expiration date automatically renders the
39 license invalid without any action by the board.

40 SECTION 80. IC 25-38.1-3-12, AS ADDED BY P.L.58-2008,
41 SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
42 JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a registration



1 certificate issued under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date
2 described under subsection (b).

3 (b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all registration certificates expire on
4 a date set by the agency of each even-numbered year but may be
5 renewed by application to the board and payment of the proper renewal
6 fee. In accordance with IC 25-1-5-4(c), the agency shall mail a notice
7 ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days before the expiration to each registered
8 veterinary technician. The agency shall issue a registration certificate
9 renewal to each individual registered under this chapter if the proper
10 fee has been received and all other requirements for renewal of the
11 registration certificate have been satisfied. Failure to renew a
12 registration certificate on or before the expiration date automatically
13 renders the license invalid without any action by the board.



COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Public Health, to which was referred House Bill 1562, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the House with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, between the enacting clause and line 1, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 1. IC 16-34-2-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012, SECTION 120, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Every ~~medical facility where abortions physician who may be performed~~ **perform an abortion** shall ~~be supplied with forms drafted~~ **enter all information required by the state department into an electronic form** provided by the state department, the purpose and function of which shall be the improvement of maternal health and life through the compilation of relevant maternal life and health factors and data, and a further purpose and function shall be to monitor all abortions performed in Indiana to assure the abortions are done only under the authorized provisions of the law. Such forms shall include, among other things, the following:

- (1) The age of the woman who is aborted.
- (2) The place where the abortion is performed.
- (3) The full name and address of the physicians performing the abortion.
- (4) The name of the father if known.
- (5) The age of the father, or the approximate age of the father if the father's age is unknown.
- (6) The postfertilization age of the fetus, the manner in which the postfertilization age was determined, and, if after the earlier of the time the fetus obtains viability or the time the postfertilization age of the fetus is at least twenty (20) weeks, the medical reason for the abortion.
- (7) The medical procedure employed to administer the abortion and, if the medical procedure performed on a fetus who is viable or has a postfertilization age of at least twenty (20) weeks:
 - (A) whether the method of abortion used was a method that, in the reasonable judgment of a physician, would provide the best opportunity for the fetus to survive; and
 - (B) the basis for the determination that the pregnant woman had a condition described in this chapter that required the abortion to avert the death of or serious impairment to the pregnant woman.



- (8) The mother's obstetrical history, including dates of other abortions, if any.
- (9) The results of pathological examinations if performed.
- (10) Information as to whether the fetus was delivered alive.
- (11) Records of all maternal deaths occurring within the health facility where the abortion was performed.
- (12) The date of the pregnancy termination.
- (13) The date the form was received by the state department.

(b) The form provided for in subsection (a) shall be completed by the physician performing the abortion and shall be transmitted to the state department not later than July 30 for each abortion performed in the first six (6) months of that year and not later than January 30 for each abortion performed for the last six (6) months of the preceding year. However, if an abortion is performed on a female who is less than fourteen (14) years of age, the physician performing the abortion shall transmit the form to the state department of health and the department of child services within three (3) days after the abortion is performed.

(c) The dates in subsection (a)(12) and (a)(13) may not be redacted for any use of the form.

(d) Each failure to ~~file~~ **submit** the completed form on time as required under this section is a Class B misdemeanor.

(e) Not later than June 30 of each year, the state department shall compile a public report providing the following:

- (1) Statistics for the previous calendar year from the information submitted under this section.
- (2) Statistics for previous calendar years compiled by the state department under this subsection, with updated information for the calendar year that was submitted to the state department after the compilation of the statistics.

The state department shall ensure that no identifying information of a pregnant woman is contained in the report.

SECTION 2. IC 25-0.5-10-1, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. As used in **IC 25-1-1.1 and IC 25-1-8-6**, "board" means any of the entities described in this chapter.

SECTION 3. IC 25-1-1.1-0.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS** [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 0.5. As used in this chapter, "board" has the meaning set forth in IC 25-0.5-10-1.**

Page 1, line 11, delete "article" and insert "**title**".

Page 4, between lines 30 and 31, begin a new paragraph and insert: "SECTION 4. IC 25-1-6-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2014,



SECTION 17, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The licensing agency shall employ necessary staff, including specialists and professionals, to carry out the administrative duties and functions of the boards, including but not limited to:

- (1) notice of board meetings and other communication services;
- (2) record keeping of board meetings, proceedings, and actions;
- (3) record keeping of all persons or individuals licensed, regulated, or certified by a board;
- (4) administration of examinations; and
- (5) administration of license or certificate issuance or renewal.

(b) In addition, the licensing agency:

- (1) shall prepare a consolidated statement of the budget requests of all the boards described in IC 25-0.5-7;
- (2) may coordinate licensing or certification renewal cycles, examination schedules, or other routine activities to efficiently utilize licensing agency staff, facilities, and transportation resources, and to improve accessibility of board functions to the public; and
- (3) may consolidate, where feasible, office space, record keeping, and data processing services.

(c) In administering the renewal of licenses or certificates under this chapter, the licensing agency shall issue a sixty (60) day notice of expiration to all holders of a license or certificate. The notice must inform the holder of a license or certificate of the requirements to:

- (1) renew the license or certificate; and
- (2) pay the renewal fee.

(d) If the licensing agency fails to send notice of expiration under subsection (c), the holder of the license or certificate is not subject to a sanction for failure to renew if the holder renews the license or certificate not more than forty-five (45) days after the holder receives the notice from the licensing agency.

(e) The licensing agency may require an applicant for a license or certificate renewal to submit evidence showing that the applicant:

- (1) meets the minimum requirements for licensure or certification; and
- (2) is not in violation of:
 - (A) the law regulating the applicant's profession; or
 - (B) rules adopted by the board regulating the applicant's profession.

(f) The licensing agency may delay renewing a license or certificate for not more than ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days after the



renewal date to permit the board to investigate information received by the licensing agency that the applicant for renewal may have committed an act for which the applicant may be disciplined. If the licensing agency delays renewing a license or certificate, the licensing agency shall notify the applicant that the applicant is being investigated. Except as provided in subsection (g), the board shall do one (1) of the following before the expiration of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period:

- (1) Deny renewal of the license or certificate following a personal appearance by the applicant before the board.
- (2) Renew the license or certificate upon satisfaction of all other requirements for renewal.
- (3) Renew the license and file a complaint under IC 25-1-7.
- (4) Request the office of the attorney general to conduct an investigation under subsection (h) if, following a personal appearance by the applicant before the board, the board has good cause to believe that the applicant engaged in activity described in IC 25-1-11-5.
- (5) Upon agreement of the applicant and the board and following a personal appearance by the applicant before the board, renew the license or certificate and place the applicant on probation status under IC 25-1-11-12.

(g) If an applicant fails to appear before the board under subsection (f), the board may take action as provided in subsection (f)(1), (f)(2), or (f)(3).

(h) If the board makes a request under subsection (f)(4), the office of the attorney general shall conduct an investigation. Upon completion of the investigation, the office of the attorney general may file a petition alleging that the applicant has engaged in activity described in IC 25-1-11-5. If the office of the attorney general files a petition, the board shall set the matter for a public hearing. If, after a public hearing, the board finds the applicant violated IC 25-1-11-5, the board may impose sanctions under IC 25-1-11-12. The board may delay renewing a license or certificate beyond ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** days after the renewal date until a final determination is made by the board. The applicant's license or certificate remains valid until the final determination of the board is rendered unless the renewal is:

- (1) denied; or
- (2) summarily suspended under IC 25-1-11-13.

(i) The license or certificate of the applicant for license renewal remains valid during the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period unless the license or certificate is denied following a personal



appearance by the applicant before the board before the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period. If the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period expires without action by the board, the license or certificate shall be automatically renewed at the end of the ~~ninety (90)~~ **one hundred twenty (120)** day period.

(j) Notwithstanding any other law, the licensing agency may stagger license or certificate renewal cycles.

(k) An application for a license or certificate is abandoned without an action by the board if the applicant does not complete the requirements for obtaining the license or certificate not more than one (1) year after the date on which the application was filed. However, the board may, for good cause shown, extend the validity of the application for additional thirty (30) day periods. An application submitted after the abandonment of an application is considered a new application."

Page 6, between lines 6 and 7, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 6. IC 25-5.1-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006, SECTION 421, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) **After a three (3) year renewal cycle ending December 31, 2017**, a license issued by the board expires on a date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in each ~~even-numbered~~ **odd-numbered** year.

(b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee not later than the expiration date of the license.

(c) If an individual fails to timely pay a renewal fee as required by subsection (b), the individual's license becomes invalid without any action being taken by the board.

SECTION 7. IC 25-6.1-2-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. ~~Meetings~~: (a) The commission shall, ~~meet at its first meeting~~ **meet at its first meeting** each ~~January, year~~, at a time and place established by the chairman, ~~to~~ conduct an election of officers and such other business as may be appropriate. The commission shall also meet upon the call of the chairman or upon the request of any two (2) members of the commission. The secretary shall provide reasonable notice of the time and place of each meeting to all members.

(b) Three (3) members constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business. A majority vote of the commission is necessary to bind the commission.

SECTION 8. IC 25-6.1-2-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) At the ~~first meeting to be held~~ **first meeting** each ~~January, year~~, the commission shall elect from its membership a chairman and a vice chairman. Each officer shall



serve for a term of one (1) year and until **his officer's** successor is elected.

(b) The chairman shall preside at all meetings of the commission.

(c) The vice chairman shall act as presiding officer in the absence of the chairman and shall perform such other duties as the chairman may direct.

(d) The commission shall be provided with an executive secretary by the licensing agency. The person provided may not be a member of the commission.

(e) The executive secretary, through the licensing agency, shall:

(1) notify all members of meetings;

(2) keep a record of all meetings of the commission, votes taken by the commission, and other proceedings, transactions, communications, official acts, and records of the commission; and

(3) perform other duties as the chairman directs."

Page 6, line 10, reset in roman "However, cemetery members may not vote on any".

Page 6, reset in roman lines 11 through 14.

Page 6, line 15, reset in roman "adopted by at least".

Page 6, line 15, after "(4)" insert "**a majority**".

Page 6, line 15, reset in roman "of the board's members.".

Re-number all SECTIONS consecutively.

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

(Reference is to HB 1562 as introduced.)

CLERE

Committee Vote: yeas 12, nays 0.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce and Technology, to which was referred House Bill No. 1562, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be AMENDED as follows:

Page 10, line 38, after "his" insert "**the**".

Page 11, between lines 10 and 11, begin a new paragraph and insert: "SECTION 11. IC 25-14.3-4 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]. (License Revocation or Suspension).".

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



Page 12, delete lines 17 through 42.
 Delete page 13 through 17.
 Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

(Reference is to HB 1562 as printed February 20, 2015.)

BUCK, Chairperson

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1562 be amended to read as follows:

Page 3, between lines 34 and 35, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 5. IC 25-1-2-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. ~~Effective October 1, 1961, such~~ **Subject to section 6(e) of this chapter**, licensing agencies as are authorized to issue any of the foregoing shall issue and reissue such licenses and collect the license fees for the same on the basis of **a licensing period. two (2) years: and the dates by month and day which govern the issuance or reissuance of licenses for one (1) year shall govern the issuance or reissuance of licenses for two (2) years: provided, that The entire fees fee for a the issuance or renewal of a license two (2) year period shall be payable before issuance thereof on the day and month designated for payment of fees for one (1) year licenses: issuance or renewal of the license.**

SECTION 6. IC 25-1-2-4 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]. Sec. 4. ~~Rebates and proration of fees for fractions of a biennium shall be allowed only with respect to the second year of such license if claim be made therefor before the expiration of the first year for which the license was issued:~~

SECTION 7. IC 25-1-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) As used in this section, "license" includes all occupational and professional licenses, registrations, permits, and certificates issued under the Indiana Code, and "licensee" includes all occupational and professional licensees, registrants, permittees, and certificate holders regulated under the Indiana Code.

(b) This section applies to the entities described in IC 25-0.5-3 that



regulate occupations or professions under the Indiana Code.

(c) Notwithstanding any other law, the entities referenced in subsection (b) shall send a notice of the upcoming expiration of a license to each licensee at least ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days prior to the expiration of the license. The notice must inform the licensee of the need to renew and the requirement of payment of the renewal fee. If this notice of expiration is not sent by the entity, the licensee is not subject to a sanction for failure to renew if, once notice is received from the entity, the license is renewed within forty-five (45) days of the receipt of the notice.

(d) Notwithstanding any other law, the entities referenced in subsection (b) shall send notice of the expiration of a license to each individual whose license has expired within thirty (30) days following the expiration of the license. The notice must meet the following requirements:

- (1) Inform the individual of the following:
 - (A) That the individual's license has expired.
 - (B) Any requirements that must be met before reinstatement of a license may occur.
- (2) Be sent electronically. However, if the entity does not have an electronic mail address on record for the individual, the notice must be sent via United States mail.

(e) If a license is first issued to an individual less than ninety (90) days before the date at the end of the licensing period on which licenses of the type issued to the individual expire generally, the license issued to the individual:

- (1) does not expire on that date; but**
- (2) expires at the conclusion of the next licensing period."**

Page 4, line 18, strike "sixty (60)" and insert "**ninety (90)**".

Page 7, line 1, strike "sixty (60)" and insert "**ninety (90)**".

Page 10, between lines 10 and 11, begin a new paragraph and insert:
 "SECTION 11. IC 25-2.1-4-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, an initial and renewed certificate expires on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

(b) An individual may renew a certificate by paying a renewal fee and complying with the continuing education requirements established under section 5 of this chapter on or before the expiration date of the certificate.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a certificate, the certificate becomes invalid without



further action by the board.

(d) If an individual holds a certificate that has been invalid for not more than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the certificate if the individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a certificate expired, the individual who holds the certificate may seek reinstatement of the certificate by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 12. IC 25-2.5-2-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board expires on the date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in each even-numbered year.

(b) To renew a license, an acupuncturist must:

- (1) pay a renewal fee not later than the expiration date of the license; and
- (2) submit proof of current active licensure in acupuncture by the National Certification Commission for Acupuncture and Oriental Medicine.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid without further action by the board.

(d) If an individual holds a license that has been invalid for not more than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the license if the individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license expired, the individual who holds the license may seek reinstatement of the license by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 13. IC 25-4-1-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 13, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every registered architect who continues in active practice shall, biennially, on or before the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4, renew the registered architect's certificate of registration and pay the required renewal fee.

(b) An architect registered or licensed in Indiana who has failed to renew the architect's certificate of registration for a period of not more than five (5) years may have the certificate of registration reinstated by meeting the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(c) An architect registered in Indiana who has failed to renew the architect's certificate of registration for more than five (5) years may



have the certificate of registration reinstated by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(d) If any registered architect desires to retire from the practice of architecture in Indiana, the architect may submit to the board the architect's verified statement of intention to withdraw from practice. The statement shall be entered upon the records of the board. During the period of the architect's retirement, the architect is not liable for any renewal or restoration fees.

(e) If any retired architect desires to return to the practice of architecture in Indiana, the retired architect must meet the following requirements:

(1) If the certificate of registration has been expired for not more than five (5) years, the retired architect must:

- (A) file with the board a verified statement indicating the architect's desire to return to the practice of architecture; and
- (B) pay a renewal fee equal to the fee set by the board to renew an unexpired registration under this chapter.

(2) If the certificate of registration has been expired for more than five (5) years, the retired architect must:

- (A) file with the board a verified statement indicating the architect's desire to return to the practice of architecture;
- (B) pay a renewal fee equal to the fee set by the board to renew an unexpired registration under this chapter; and
- (C) complete remediation and additional training established by the board based on the length of time the certificate of registration has been expired."

Page 10, line 13, delete "After" and insert "**Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e), after**".

Page 11, between lines 10 and 11, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 17. IC 25-6.1-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.59-2014, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) Every individual, before acting as an auctioneer, must obtain a license from the commission.

(b) An applicant for a license must:

- (1) be at least eighteen (18) years of age;
- (2) have completed at least eighty (80) actual hours of auction instruction from a course provider approved by the commission;
- (3) not have a conviction for:
 - (A) an act which would constitute a ground for disciplinary sanction under IC 25-1-11; or
 - (B) a felony that has a direct bearing on the applicant's ability to practice competently.



(c) Auction instruction required under subsection (b) must provide the applicant with knowledge of all of the following:

- (1) The value of real estate and of various goods commonly sold at an auction.
- (2) Bid calling.
- (3) Sale preparation, sale advertising, and sale summary.
- (4) Mathematics.
- (5) The provisions of this article and the commission's rules.
- (6) Any other subject matter approved by the commission.

(d) An individual seeking an initial license as an auctioneer under this article shall file with the commission a completed application on the form prescribed by the commission. When filing an application for an auctioneer license, each individual shall pay a nonrefundable examination fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2.

(e) When applying for a renewal of an auctioneer license, each individual shall do the following:

- (1) Apply in a manner required by the commission, including certification by the applicant that the applicant has complied with the requirements of IC 25-6.1-9-8, unless the commission has granted the applicant a waiver under IC 25-6.1-9-9.
- (2) Pay the renewal fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2.

(f) Upon the receipt of a completed application for an initial or a renewal license, the commission shall examine the application and may verify the information contained therein.

(g) An applicant who is seeking an initial license must pass an examination approved by the commission that covers subjects and topics of knowledge required to practice as an auctioneer. The commission shall hold examinations as the commission may prescribe.

(h) The commission shall issue an auctioneer's license, in such form as it may prescribe, to each individual who meets all of the requirements for licensing and pays the appropriate fees.

(i) Auctioneer licenses shall be issued for a term of four (4) years. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license expires at midnight on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and every fourth year thereafter, unless renewed before that date. If the license has expired, it may be reinstated not later than four (4) years after the date it expired if the license holder meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(j) If a license has expired for a period of more than four (4) years, the holder of the license may have the license reinstated by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).



(k) The commission may waive the requirement that a nonresident applicant pass an examination and that the nonresident submit written statements by two (2) individuals, if the nonresident applicant:

- (1) is licensed to act as an auctioneer in the state of the applicant's domicile;
- (2) submits with the application a duly certified letter of certification issued by the licensing board of the applicant's domiciliary state;
- (3) is a resident of a state whose licensing requirements are substantially equal to the requirements of Indiana;
- (4) is a resident of a state that grants the same privileges to the licensees of Indiana; and
- (5) includes with the application an irrevocable consent that actions may be commenced against the applicant. The consent shall stipulate that service of process or pleadings on the commission shall be taken and held in all courts as valid and binding as if service of process had been made upon the applicant personally within this state. If any process or pleading mentioned in this subsection is served upon the commission, it shall be by duplicate copies. One (1) of the duplicate copies shall be filed in the office of the commission and one (1) shall be immediately forwarded by the commission by registered or certified mail to the applicant against whom the process or pleadings are directed.

(l) The commission may enter into a reciprocal agreement with another state concerning nonresident applicants.

SECTION 18. IC 25-8-4-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013, SECTION 29, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e), and** except for an instructor license issued under subsection (c) or IC 25-8-6-1, a license issued under this article expires on a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires four (4) years after the initial expiration date.

(b) A license issued to an instructor under IC 25-8-6-1 expires at the time that the instructor's practitioner license expires. The board shall renew an instructor's license under this subsection concurrently with the instructor's practitioner license.

(c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e),** initial provisional licenses are valid for a length of time determined by the board, but not to exceed two (2) years.

SECTION 19. IC 25-8-4-19, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 22, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 19. The board shall renew a license if the license



holder pays the fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 to renew the license before the license is to expire. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the expiration and renewal of a license issued under this article.**

SECTION 20. IC 25-8-13-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013, SECTION 84, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for an application to issue or renew a beauty culture school license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a beauty culture school license.**

(b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating a beauty culture school license.

SECTION 21. IC 25-8-13-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.84-2010, SECTION 51, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an instructor license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an instructor license.**

(b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating an instructor license.

SECTION 22. IC 25-8-13-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.170-2013, SECTION 85, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a beauty culture salon license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a beauty culture salon license.**

(b) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating a beauty culture salon license.

SECTION 23. IC 25-8-13-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006, SECTION 50, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for a cosmetologist license.

(b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a cosmetologist license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a cosmetologist license.**

(c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating a cosmetologist license.

(d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing an Indiana cosmetologist license to a person who holds a license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements set forth in IC 25-8-4-2.



SECTION 24. IC 25-8-13-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006, SECTION 51, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for an electrologist license.

(b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an electrologist license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an electrologist license.**

(c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating an electrologist license.

(d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds an electrologist license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under IC 25-8-4-2.

SECTION 25. IC 25-8-13-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006, SECTION 52, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for a manicurist license.

(b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a manicurist license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a manicurist license.**

(c) The board shall charge a fee required under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating a manicurist license.

(d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds a manicurist license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under IC 25-8-4-2.

SECTION 26. IC 25-8-13-11, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006, SECTION 53, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for an esthetician license.

(b) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing an esthetician license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of an esthetician license.**

(c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating an esthetician license.

(d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under



IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds an esthetician license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under IC 25-8-4-2.

SECTION 27. IC 25-8-13-12.1, AS ADDED BY P.L.84-2010, SECTION 53, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12.1. (a) The board shall establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2 for providing an examination to an applicant for a barber license.

(b) The board shall establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing or renewing a barber license. **IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a barber license.**

(c) The board shall charge a fee established under IC 25-1-8-6 for reinstating a barber license.

(d) The board shall charge a fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 for issuing a license to a person who holds a barber license from another jurisdiction that meets the requirements under IC 25-8-4-2.

SECTION 28. IC 25-8-15.4-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 24, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this chapter expires every fourth year on a date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

(b) The board shall renew a license issued under this chapter if the person that operates the facility pays the fee for renewal established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on or before the date established by the licensing agency.

(c) If the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before the renewal date established by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action by the board.

SECTION 29. IC 25-10-1-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date described under subsection (b).

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all licenses issued by the board shall be subject to renewal biennially on a date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A renewal license fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 must be paid to the board on or before the date established by the licensing agency, and if not paid on or before that date, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the board.

(c) An individual whose license has been expired for not more than



three (3) years may have the license reinstated upon meeting the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license under this chapter expired, the individual holding the license may have the license reinstated by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(e) A license must be displayed in the office or the place of practice of the licensee.

(f) Each applicant for renewal shall furnish evidence of attendance during each preceding licensing year at not less than one (1) chiropractic educational conference or seminar approved by the board. The conference or seminar may be conducted by an established chiropractic organization or college. This requirement does not apply to the applicant's first licensing year. If an applicant fails to comply with this subsection, the applicant's license expires and becomes invalid at midnight of the renewal date and may be reinstated only upon application and the payment of a fee established by the board and proper showing to the board that there has been a makeup by the applicant of the omitted educational work.

(g) Any chiropractor licensed to practice chiropractic in this state who intends to retire from practice shall notify the board in writing of the chiropractor's intention to retire and shall surrender the license to the board. Upon receipt of this notice and license, the board shall record the fact that the chiropractor is retired and excuse the person from further payment of license renewal fees and attendance at license renewal seminars. If any chiropractor surrenders the license to practice chiropractic in this state, the chiropractor's reinstatement may be considered by the board on the chiropractor's written request. If any disciplinary proceedings under this chapter are pending against a chiropractor, the chiropractor may not surrender the license without the written approval of the board.

(h) Any chiropractor licensed to practice chiropractic in this state who intends to become inactive in the practice of chiropractic shall notify the board in writing that the chiropractor will not maintain an office or practice chiropractic in Indiana. The board shall then classify the chiropractor's license as inactive. The renewal fee of the inactive license is one-half (1/2) of the license renewal fee, and the chiropractor shall not be required to attend license renewal seminars. If a chiropractor holding an inactive license intends to maintain an office or practice chiropractic, the chiropractor shall notify the board of that intent. The board may reinstate that chiropractor's license upon notification and receipt of:



- (1) an application;
- (2) payment of the current renewal fee;
- (3) payment of the current reinstatement fee; and
- (4) evidence of attendance of one (1) educational conference approved by the board for each year or portion of a year of inactive license classification.

(i) The board shall discipline a practitioner of the chiropractic in accordance with IC 25-1-9.

SECTION 30. IC 25-13-1-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.264-2013, SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) A license to practice dental hygiene in Indiana may be issued to candidates who pass an examination administered by an entity that has been approved by the board. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the license shall be valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) Prior to the issuance of the license, the applicant shall pay a fee set by the board under section 5 of this chapter. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board expires on a date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4(k) of each even-numbered year.

(c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, an applicant for license renewal must satisfy the following conditions:

(1) Pay:

(A) the renewal fee set by the board under section 5 of this chapter on or before the renewal date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency in each even-numbered year; and

(B) a compliance fee of twenty dollars (\$20) to be deposited in the dental compliance fund established by IC 25-14-1-3.7.

(2) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, provide the board with a sworn statement signed by the applicant attesting that the applicant has fulfilled the continuing education requirements under IC 25-13-2.

(3) Be currently certified or successfully complete a course in basic life support through a program approved by the board. The board may waive the basic life support requirement for applicants who show reasonable cause.

(d) If the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before the renewal date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action by the board.

(e) A license invalidated under subsection (d) may be reinstated by the board in three (3) years or less after such invalidation if the holder



of the license meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(f) If a license remains invalid under subsection (d) for more than three (3) years, the holder of the invalid license may obtain a reinstated license by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d). The board may require the licensee to participate in remediation or pass an examination administered by an entity approved by the board.

(g) The board may require the holder of an invalid license who files an application under this subsection to appear before the board and explain why the holder failed to renew the license.

(h) The board may adopt rules under section 5 of this chapter establishing requirements for the reinstatement of a license that has been invalidated for more than three (3) years.

(i) The license to practice must be displayed at all times in plain view of the patients in the office where the holder is engaged in practice. No person may lawfully practice dental hygiene who does not possess a license and its current renewal.

(j) Biennial renewals of licenses are subject to the provisions of IC 25-1-2.

SECTION 31. IC 25-14-1-3.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.6-2012, SECTION 171, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3.1. (a) A dentist must have a permit to administer:

(1) general anesthesia/deep sedation; or

(2) moderate sedation using a parenteral route of administration; to a patient.

(b) The board shall establish by rule the educational and training requirements for the issuance and renewal of a permit required by subsection (a).

(c) The board shall establish the requirements for a program of education and training for pediatric anesthesiology.

(d) The requirements for a permit issued under this section must be based on the current American Dental Association's "Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students", as adopted by the American Dental Association House of Delegates.

(e) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a permit issued under this section must be renewed biennially.

SECTION 32. IC 25-14-1-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.264-2013, SECTION 11, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless renewed, a license issued by the board expires on a date specified by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4(k). An applicant for renewal shall pay the



renewal fee set by the board under section 13 of this chapter on or before the renewal date specified by the agency. In addition to the renewal fee set by the board, an applicant for renewal shall pay a compliance fee of twenty dollars (\$20) to be deposited in the dental compliance fund established by section 3.7 of this chapter.

(b) The license shall be properly displayed at all times in the office of the person named as the holder of the license, and a person may not be considered to be in legal practice if the person does not possess the license and renewal card.

(c) If a holder of a dental license does not renew the license on or before the renewal date specified by the agency, without any action by the board the license together with any related renewal card is invalidated.

(d) Except as provided in section 27.1 of this chapter, a license invalidated under subsection (c) may be reinstated by the board in three (3) years or less after its invalidation if the holder of the license meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) Except as provided in section 27.1 of this chapter, if a license remains invalid under subsection (c) for more than three (3) years, the holder of the invalid license may obtain a reinstated license by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(f) The board may require the holder of an invalid license who files an application under this subsection to appear before the board and explain why the holder failed to renew the license.

(g) The board may adopt rules under section 13 of this chapter establishing requirements for the reinstatement of a license that has been invalidated for more than three (3) years. The fee for a duplicate license to practice as a dentist is subject to IC 25-1-8-2.

(h) Biennial renewal of licenses is subject to IC 25-1-2.

(i) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, an application for renewal of a license under this section must contain a sworn statement signed by the applicant attesting that the applicant has fulfilled the continuing education requirements under IC 25-14-3."

Page 11, between lines 12 and 13, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 34. IC 25-14.5-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006, SECTION 437, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate issued by the board expires on a date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next even-numbered year following the year in which the certificate was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a certificate by paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the certificate.



(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a certificate, the certificate becomes invalid.

SECTION 35. IC 25-14.5-6-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. A certified dietitian may renew a certificate by:

- (1) paying a renewal fee as set by the board; and
- (2) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, providing a sworn statement attesting that the certified dietitian has completed the continuing education required by the board.

IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a certificate under this article.

SECTION 36. IC 25-14.5-6-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The board shall mail an application for renewal to a certified dietitian at least ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days before the date on which the certified dietitian's certificate expires.

(b) The application must be mailed to the certified dietitian's most recent address as it appears on the record of the board.

(c) A certified dietitian filing for renewal of a certificate must:

- (1) satisfactorily complete the renewal application;
- (2) return the application to the board; and
- (3) submit to the board the required renewal fee;

before expiration of the certified dietitian's current certificate.

(d) Upon receipt of the application and fee submitted under subsection (c), the board shall:

- (1) verify the accuracy of the application;
- (2) determine whether the continuing education requirement has been met; and
- (3) verify that all other requirements under this article have been met.

(e) When the board is satisfied that all conditions under subsection (d) have been met, the board shall issue to the applicant a notice of certificate renewal that shall be valid for two (2) years.

SECTION 37. IC 25-15-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 31, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e) and** except as provided in subsection (b), a license issued under this article expires on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

(b) A funeral director intern license expires two (2) years after it is issued by the board."

Page 11, delete lines 13 through 21, begin a new paragraph and insert:

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



"SECTION 38. IC 25-17.3-4-5, AS ADDED BY P.L.177-2009, SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board expires on the date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in even-numbered years.

(b) To renew a license, a genetic counselor shall:

(1) pay a renewal fee not later than the expiration date of the license; and

(2) meet all other requirements for renewal under this chapter.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid without further action by the board.

(d) If an individual holds a license that has been invalid for not more than three (3) years, the board shall reinstate the license if the individual meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If more than three (3) years have elapsed since the date a license has expired, the individual who holds the expired license may seek reinstatement of the license by satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 39. IC 25-19-1-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every holder of a health facility administrator's license shall renew the license on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. The renewals shall be granted as a matter of course, unless the board finds, after due notice and hearing, that the applicant has acted or failed to act in a manner or under circumstances that would constitute grounds for nonrenewal, suspension, or revocation of a license.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a health facility administrator's license expires at midnight on the renewal date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency. Failure to renew a license on or before the renewal date automatically renders the license invalid.

(c) A person who fails to renew a license before it expires and becomes invalid at midnight of the renewal date shall be reinstated by the board if the person applies for reinstatement not later than three (3) years after the expiration of the license and meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) The board may reinstate a person who applies to reinstate a license under this section more than three (3) years after the date the license expires and becomes invalid if the person applies to the board for reinstatement and meets the requirements for reinstatement established by the board under IC 25-1-8-6(d).



(e) The board may require an applicant under subsection (d) to appear before the board to explain the applicant's failure to renew.

SECTION 40. IC 25-20-1-12, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) The committee shall issue hearing aid dealer certificates of registration. ~~that~~, **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e), hearing aid dealer certificates of registration** expire biennially on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. To renew a hearing aid dealer certificate of registration, the holder of the certificate must pay a renewal fee set by the committee on or before the date established by the licensing agency.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a certificate does not renew the holder's hearing aid dealer certificate of registration on or before the date established by the licensing agency, the certificate expires without any action taken by the board.

(c) A holder of a hearing aid dealer certificate of registration that expires under this section may have the certificate reinstated by the committee if, not later than three (3) years after the license expires, the holder meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) A person who applies for reinstatement of a certificate of registration under this section more than three (3) years after the date the registration expires and becomes invalid may apply for reinstatement by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 41. IC 25-20.2-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.127-2012, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The board is composed of seven (7) members appointed by the governor as follows:

- (1) Four (4) members, each of whom:
 - (A) is licensed in Indiana as a home inspector; and
 - (B) has been actively engaged in performing home inspections in Indiana for at least five (5) years immediately before the member's appointment to the board.
- (2) One (1) member who:
 - (A) is a home builder; and
 - (B) has been actively engaged in home building in Indiana for at least five (5) years immediately before the member's appointment to the board.
- (3) One (1) member who:
 - (A) is a licensed real estate broker under IC 25-34.1-3-4.1; and
 - (B) has been actively engaged in selling, trading, exchanging, optioning, leasing, renting, managing, listing, or appraising



residential real estate in Indiana for at least five (5) years immediately before the member's appointment to the board.

(4) One (1) member who represents the public at large and is not associated with the home inspection, home building, or real estate business other than as a consumer.

(b) The members of the board must be residents of Indiana.

(c) All members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of the governor.

SECTION 42. IC 25-20.2-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.194-2005, SECTION 59, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license for a home inspector issued under this article expires on a date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and shall be renewed biennially upon payment of the required renewal fees.

SECTION 43. IC 25-20.2-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) An individual who applies to renew a license as a licensed home inspector must:

(1) furnish evidence showing successful completion of the continuing education requirements of this chapter; and

(2) pay the renewal fee established by the board.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action by the board.

(c) A license may be reinstated by the board not later than (3) years after the expiration of the license if the applicant for reinstatement meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 44. IC 25-20.7-2-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.177-2009, SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. A registered interior designer who continues to actively practice interior design shall:

(1) renew the registration not more than ninety (90) days before the expiration of the registration; and

(2) pay the renewal fee under IC 25-20.7-3.

IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the renewal of the registration of a registered interior designer under this article.

SECTION 45. IC 25-21.5-8-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 39, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE



JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate of registration expires biennially on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

(b) An individual may renew a certificate of registration by paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date established by the licensing agency.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a certificate of registration, the certificate of registration becomes invalid without any action of the board.

(d) A certificate of registration may be reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after its expiration if the applicant for reinstatement meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If a certificate of registration has been expired for more than three (3) years, the certificate of registration may be reinstated by the board if the holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 46. IC 25-21.8-6-1, AS ADDED BY P.L.200-2007, SECTION 8, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certification issued by the board is valid for four (4) years.

(b) A certification **expires:**

(1) **expires** at midnight on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4, **subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**; and

(2) every four (4) years thereafter, unless renewed before that date."

Page 12, after line 18, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 48. IC 25-22.5-7-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 42, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this article expires biennially on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. On or before the date established by the licensing agency, an applicant for renewal shall pay the biennial renewal fee set by the board under IC 25-1-8-2.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not renew the license on or before the date established by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the board.

(c) A license that becomes invalid under subsection (b) may be reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after the invalidation if the holder of the invalid license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).



(d) If a license that becomes invalid under this section is not reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after its invalidation, the holder of the invalid license must meet the requirements for reinstatement established by the board under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(e) A licensee whose license is reinstated under subsection (d) may be issued a provisional license under IC 25-22.5-5-2.7.

(f) The board may adopt rules under IC 25-22.5-2-7 establishing requirements for the reinstatement of a lapsed license.

SECTION 49. IC 25-23-1-16.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.134-2008, SECTION 31, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16.1. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license to practice as a registered nurse expires on October 31 in each odd-numbered year. Failure to renew the license on or before the expiration date will automatically render the license invalid without any action by the board.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license to practice as a licensed practical nurse expires on October 31 in each even-numbered year. Failure to renew the license on or before the expiration date will automatically render the license invalid without any action by the board.

(c) The procedures and fee for renewal shall be set by the board.

(d) At the time of license renewal, each registered nurse and each licensed practical nurse shall pay a renewal fee, a portion of which shall be for the rehabilitation of impaired registered nurses and impaired licensed practical nurses. The lesser of the following amounts from fees collected under this subsection shall be deposited in the impaired nurses account of the state general fund established by section 34 of this chapter:

(1) Twenty-five percent (25%) of the license renewal fee per license renewed under this section.

(2) The cost per license to operate the impaired nurses program, as determined by the Indiana professional licensing agency.

SECTION 50. IC 25-23-1-18 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 18. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, any person who fails to renew a license before it expires shall be reinstated by the board upon meeting the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6.

(b) A person who fails to apply to reinstate a license under this section within three (3) years after the date it expires may be issued a license by the board if the person meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6.



SECTION 51. IC 25-23.4-3-4, AS ADDED BY P.L.232-2013, SECTION 20, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate issued under this chapter expires after two (2) years, on a date established by the licensing agency. Failure to renew a certificate on or before the expiration date makes the certificate invalid without any action by the board.

(b) To be eligible for the renewal of a certificate issued under this chapter, an individual must:

- (1) meet continuing education requirements set by the board;
- (2) maintain a Certified Professional Midwife credential; and
- (3) maintain sufficient liability insurance.

SECTION 52. IC 25-23.5-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.197-2011, SECTION 93, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) After considering the committee's proposed rules, the board shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 establishing standards for:

- (1) the competent practice of occupational therapy;
- (2) the renewal of licenses issued under this article, **subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**; and
- (3) standards for the administration of this article.

(b) After considering the committee's recommendations for fees, the board shall establish fees under IC 25-1-8-2.

SECTION 53. IC 25-23.6-5-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a license by:

- (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license; and
- (2) completing not less than twenty (20) hours of continuing education per licensure year.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 54. IC 25-23.6-8-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.134-2008, SECTION 46, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a marriage and family therapist license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a marriage and family therapist license by:

- (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the



license; and

(2) completing not less than fifteen (15) hours of continuing education each licensure year.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 55. IC 25-23.6-8-8.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.134-2008, SECTION 47, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8.5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a marriage and family therapist associate license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a marriage and family therapist associate license two (2) times by:

(1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license; and

(2) completing at least fifteen (15) hours of continuing education each licensure year.

(c) The board may renew a marriage and family therapist associate license for additional periods based on circumstances determined by the board.

(d) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 56. IC 25-23.6-8.5-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.84-2010, SECTION 66, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a mental health counselor license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a mental health counselor license by:

(1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license; and

(2) completing at least twenty (20) hours of continuing education per licensure year.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a mental health counselor license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 57. IC 25-23.6-8.5-8.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.84-2010, SECTION 67, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8.5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a mental health counselor associate license issued by the board is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a mental health counselor associate



license two (2) times by:

- (1) paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license; and
- (2) completing at least twenty (20) hours of continuing education per licensure year.

(c) The board may renew a mental health counselor associate license for additional periods based on circumstances determined by the board.

(d) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a mental health counselor associate license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 58. IC 25-23.6-10.5-12, AS ADDED BY P.L.122-2009, SECTION 29, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the board under this chapter is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 59. IC 25-23.7-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.157-2006, SECTION 63, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. Notwithstanding IC 25-1-2, **but subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the holder of a license issued under IC 25-23.7-5 must renew the license and pay the required renewal fee every four (4) years after it is issued on or before the date established by the Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

SECTION 60. IC 25-23.7-3-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.87-2005, SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The board consists of nine (9) members appointed by the governor as follows:

- (1) Four (4) members who are installers, each of whom:
 - (A) is licensed in Indiana as an installer; and
 - (B) has been actively engaged in the installation of manufactured homes for at least five (5) years immediately before the member's appointment to the board.
- (2) One (1) member who represents manufactured home manufacturers with production facilities in Indiana.
- (3) One (1) member who represents manufactured home dealers.
- (4) One (1) member who is an operator or who is employed by an operator of a mobile home community licensed under IC 16-41-27.



(5) One (1) member who is an owner of or who is employed by a primary inspection agency, a designation issued under 24 CFR 3282 by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

(6) One (1) member who represents the general public and who is not associated with the manufactured home industry other than as a consumer.

(b) The members of the board must be residents of Indiana.

(c) All members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of the governor.

SECTION 61. IC 25-23.7-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 44, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) An individual who applies to renew a license as an installer of a manufactured home must:

(1) furnish evidence showing successful completion of the continuing education requirements of this chapter; and

(2) pay the renewal fee established by the board.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not renew the license before the date established by the licensing agency, the certificate expires without any action taken by the board.

(c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 62 IC 25-24-1-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 45, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) In each even-numbered year, the Indiana professional licensing agency shall issue a ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** day notice of expiration and a license renewal application in accordance with IC 25-1-2-6 to each optometrist licensed in Indiana. The application shall be mailed to the last known address of the optometrist.

(b) The payment of the renewal fee must be made on or before the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, the applicant's license expires and becomes invalid if the applicant has not paid the renewal fee by the date established by the licensing agency.

(c) The license shall be reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after its expiration if the applicant for reinstatement meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) Reinstatement of an expired license after the expiration of the



three (3) year period provided in subsection (c) is dependent upon the applicant satisfying the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(e) The board may classify a license as inactive if the board receives written notification from a licensee stating that the licensee will not maintain an office or practice optometry in Indiana. The renewal fee for an inactive license is one-half (1/2) the license renewal fee set by the board under section 1 of this chapter.

(f) The holder of an inactive license is not required to fulfill continuing education requirements set by the board. The board may issue a license to the holder of an inactive license if the applicant:

- (1) pays the renewal fee set by the board under section 1 of this chapter;
- (2) pays the reinstatement fee set by the board under section 1 of this chapter; and
- (3) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, attests that the applicant obtained the continuing education required by the board under section 1 of this chapter for each year, or portion of a year during which the applicant's license has been classified as inactive.

SECTION 63. IC 25-26-13-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The Indiana board of pharmacy is created. It shall consist of seven (7) members, not more than four (4) of whom may be from the same political party, appointed by the governor for terms of four (4) years. One (1) member of the board, to represent the general public, must be a resident of this state who has never been associated with pharmacy in any way other than as a consumer. Except for the member representing the general public, the members must be pharmacists in good standing of recognized experience and ability from varied practice settings who hold a current license to practice pharmacy in Indiana. One (1) member of the board must be a practicing hospital pharmacist. A person employed as a full-time staff member or as a professor at a school of pharmacy may not serve on the board. If a member leaves the board for any reason before the end of the member's term, the member's successor shall serve for the unexpired portion of the term. **All members of the board serve at the will and pleasure of the governor.**

(b) Not later than ten (10) days after a member's appointment, the member must subscribe by oath or affirmation to faithfully uphold the duties of the member's office. If a member fails to qualify as provided, a new member shall be appointed in the member's place.

(c) At the first meeting of each year the board shall elect from



among its members a president and vice president who shall perform duties and have powers as the board prescribes.

(d) The board shall meet at least eight (8) times per year at such times and places as the board selects. At each meeting the board shall continue in session from day to day, for not more than five (5) days, until the business of the meeting is complete. Four (4) members of the board shall constitute a quorum.

(e) Each member of the board is entitled to compensation as determined by the rules of the budget agency for each day the member is actually engaged in business of the board, together with necessary travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of the member's duties.

(f) Approval by a majority of the quorum is required for any action to be taken by the board.

SECTION 64. IC 25-26-13-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 46, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a pharmacist's license expires biennially on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4, unless renewed before that date.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if an application for renewal is not filed and the required fee paid before the established biennial renewal date, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the board.

(c) Subject to IC 25-1-4-3, a statement attesting that the pharmacist has met the continuing education requirements shall be submitted with the application for license renewal.

(d) If a pharmacist surrenders the pharmacist's license to practice pharmacy in Indiana, the board may subsequently consider reinstatement of the pharmacist's license upon written request of the pharmacist. The board may impose any conditions it considers appropriate to the surrender or to the reinstatement of a surrendered license. The practitioner may not voluntarily surrender the practitioner's license to the board without the written consent of the board if any disciplinary proceedings are pending against the practitioner under this chapter or IC 25-1-9.

(e) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the board may reinstate the license only if the person meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(f) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(g) The board may require a person who applies for a license under



subsection (e) to appear before the board and explain the reason the person failed to renew the person's license.

SECTION 65. IC 25-27-1-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006, SECTION 467, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 8. (a) The committee shall license as a physical therapist each applicant who:

- (1) successfully passes the examination provided for in this chapter; and
- (2) is otherwise qualified as required by this chapter.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all licenses and certificates issued by the committee expire on the date of each even-numbered year specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A renewal fee established by the board after consideration of any recommendation of the committee must be paid biennially on or before the date specified by the Indiana professional licensing agency, and if not paid on or before that date, the license or certificate becomes invalid, without further action by the committee. A penalty fee set by the board after consideration of any recommendation of the committee shall be in effect for any reinstatement within three (3) years from the original date of expiration.

(c) An expired license or certificate may be reinstated by the committee up to three (3) years after the expiration date if the holder of the expired license or certificate:

- (1) pays a penalty fee set by the board after consideration of any recommendation of the committee; and
- (2) pays the renewal fees for the biennium.

If more than three (3) years have elapsed since expiration of the license or certificate, the holder may be reexamined by the committee. The board may adopt, after consideration of any recommendation of the committee, rules setting requirements for reinstatement of an expired license.

(d) The committee may issue not more than two (2) temporary permits to a physical therapist or physical therapist's assistant. A person with a temporary permit issued under this subsection may practice physical therapy only under the direct supervision of a licensed physical therapist who is responsible for the patient. A temporary permit may be issued to any person who has paid a fee set by the board after consideration of any recommendation of the committee and who:

- (1) has a valid license from another state to practice physical therapy, or has a valid certificate from another state to act as a physical therapist's assistant; or
- (2) has applied for and been approved by the committee to take



the examination for licensure or certification, has not previously failed the licensure or certification examination in Indiana or any other state, and has:

- (A) graduated from a school or program of physical therapy;
- or
- (B) graduated from a two (2) year college level education program for physical therapist's assistants that meets the standards set by the committee.

The applicant must take the examination within the time limits set by the committee.

(e) A temporary permit issued under subsection (d) expires when the applicant becomes licensed or certified, or approved for endorsement licensing or certification by the committee, or when the application for licensure has been disapproved, whichever occurs first. An application for licensure or certification is disapproved and any temporary permit based upon the application expires when the applicant fails to take the examination within the time limits set by the committee or when the committee receives notification of the applicant's failure to pass any required examination in Indiana or any other state.

(f) A holder of a license or certificate under this chapter who intends to retire from practice shall notify the committee in writing. Upon receipt of the notice, the committee shall record the fact that the holder of the license or certificate is retired and release the person from further payment of renewal fees. If a holder of the license or certificate surrenders a license or certificate, reinstatement of the license or certificate may be considered by the committee upon written request. The committee may impose conditions it considers appropriate to the surrender or reinstatement of a surrendered license or certificate. A license or certificate may not be surrendered to the committee without the written consent of the committee if any disciplinary proceedings are pending against a holder of a license or certificate under this chapter.

SECTION 66. IC 25-27.5-4-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.3-2008, SECTION 192, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued by the committee expires on a date established by the Indiana professional licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next even-numbered year following the year in which the license was issued.

(b) An individual may renew a license by paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the license.

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a license, the license becomes invalid and must be



returned to the committee.

SECTION 67. IC 25-28.5-1-22, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 55, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, every license or certificate of registration issued under this chapter expires on a date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and shall be renewed biennially thereafter upon payment of the required renewal fees.

(b) Applications for renewal shall be filed with the commission in the form and manner provided by the commission. The application shall be accompanied by the required renewal fee. The commission, upon the receipt of the application for renewal and the required renewal fee, shall issue to the renewal applicant a license or certificate of registration in the category said applicant has previously held. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license is renewed, a license issued by the commission expires on the date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4.

(c) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license or certificate of registration lapses without any action by the commission if an application for renewal has not been filed and the required fee has not been paid by the established biennial renewal date.

(d) If a license or certificate of registration has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the license or certificate of registration may be reinstated by the commission if the holder of the license or certificate of registration meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If a license or certificate of registration has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license or certificate of registration may be reinstated by the commission if the holder of the license or certificate of registration meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 68. IC 25-29-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.1-2006, SECTION 473, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license to practice podiatric medicine expires on a date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in each odd-numbered year.

SECTION 69. IC 25-30-1-16, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 57, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 16. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license is renewed, a license issued under this chapter expires on a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires every four (4) years after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal shall pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on



or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not renew the license by the date specified by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the board.

(c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 70. IC 25-30-1.3-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 58, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a license is renewed, a license issued under this chapter expires on a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires every four (4) years after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal shall pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license does not renew the license by the date specified by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without any action taken by the board.

(c) If a license has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated if the holder of the license meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 71. IC 25-31-1-17, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 59, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 17. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless a certificate is renewed, a certificate issued under this chapter expires on a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires biennially after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal shall submit an application in the manner prescribed by the board and pay the renewal fee established by the board under IC 25-1-8-2 on or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a certificate does not renew the certificate by the date specified by the licensing agency, the certificate expires and becomes invalid without the board taking any action.



(c) The failure on the part of a registrant to renew a certificate does not deprive the registrant of the right of renewal.

(d) If a certificate has been expired for not more than three (3) years, the certificate may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the certificate meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(e) If a certificate has been expired for more than three (3) years, the certificate may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the certificate meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 72. IC 25-33-1-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 61, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this article expires on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4. A renewal fee established by the board under section 3 of this chapter must be paid by an applicant for renewal before the license expires.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of an expired license fails to renew the license on or before the renewal date, the license expires and becomes invalid without any further action by the board.

(c) A license that expires and becomes invalid under this section may be renewed by the board not more than three (3) years after the date of the expiration of the license if the applicant meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been invalidated under this section for more than three (3) years, the holder of the license may have the license reinstated by meeting the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(e) The board may adopt rules establishing requirements for reinstatement of a license invalidated for more than three (3) years under this section.

(f) An initial license issued under this article is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date of issuance.

(g) The board may require a person who applies for a license under subsection (d) to appear before the board and explain the reason the person failed to renew the person's license.

SECTION 73. IC 25-34.1-3-4.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.127-2012, SECTION 13, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4.1. (a) To obtain a broker license, an individual must:

(1) be at least eighteen (18) years of age before applying for a license and must not have a conviction for:

(A) an act that would constitute a ground for disciplinary sanction under IC 25-1-11;



- (B) a crime that has a direct bearing on the individual's ability to practice competently; or
 - (C) a crime that indicates the individual has the propensity to endanger the public;
 - (2) have a high school diploma or a general educational development (GED) diploma under IC 20-20-6 (before its repeal) or IC 22-4.1-18;
 - (3) have successfully completed an approved broker course of study as prescribed in IC 25-34.1-5-5;
 - (4) apply for a license by submitting the application fee prescribed by the commission and an application specifying the name, address, and age of the applicant, the name under which the applicant intends to conduct business, the address where the business is to be conducted, proof of compliance with subdivisions (2) and (3), and any other information the commission requires;
 - (5) pass a written examination prepared and administered by the commission or its duly appointed agent; and
 - (6) within one (1) year after passing the commission examination, submit the license fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2. If an individual applicant fails to file a timely license fee, the commission shall void the application and may not issue a license to that applicant unless that applicant again complies with the requirements of subdivisions (4) and (5) and this subdivision.
- (b) To obtain a broker license, a partnership must:
- (1) have as partners only individuals who are licensed brokers;
 - (2) have at least one (1) partner who:
 - (A) is a resident of Indiana; or
 - (B) is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 - (3) cause each employee of the partnership who acts as a broker to be licensed; and
 - (4) submit the license fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2 and an application setting forth the name and residence address of each partner and the information prescribed in subsection (a)(4).
- (c) To obtain a broker license, a corporation must:
- (1) have a licensed broker:
 - (A) residing in Indiana who is either an officer of the corporation or, if no officer resides in Indiana, the highest ranking corporate employee in Indiana with authority to bind the corporation in real estate transactions; or



- (B) who is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 - (2) cause each employee of the corporation who acts as a broker to be licensed; and
 - (3) submit the license fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2, an application setting forth the name and residence address of each officer and the information prescribed in subsection (a)(4), a copy of the certificate of incorporation, and a certificate of good standing of the corporation issued by the secretary of state.
- (d) To obtain a broker license, a limited liability company must:
- (1) if a member-managed limited liability company:
 - (A) have as members only individuals who are licensed brokers; and
 - (B) have at least one (1) member who is:
 - (i) a resident of Indiana; or
 - (ii) a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 - (2) if a manager-managed limited liability company, have a licensed broker:
 - (A) residing in Indiana who is either a manager of the company or, if no manager resides in Indiana, the highest ranking company officer or employee in Indiana with authority to bind the company in real estate transactions; or
 - (B) who is a managing broker under IC 25-34.1-4-3(b);
 - (3) cause each employee of the limited liability company who acts as a broker to be licensed; and
 - (4) submit the license fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2 and an application setting forth the information prescribed in subsection (a)(4), together with:
 - (A) if a member-managed company, the name and residence address of each member; or
 - (B) if a manager-managed company, the name and residence address of each manager, or of each officer if the company has officers.
- (e) Licenses granted to partnerships, corporations, and limited liability companies are issued, expire, are renewed, and are effective on the same terms as licenses granted to individual brokers, except as provided in subsection (h), and except that expiration or revocation of the license of:
- (1) any partner in a partnership or all individuals in a corporation satisfying subsection (c)(1); or
 - (2) a member in a member-managed limited liability company or all individuals in a manager-managed limited liability company



satisfying subsection (d)(2); terminates the license of that partnership, corporation, or limited liability company.

(f) Upon the applicant's compliance with the requirements of subsection (a), (b), or (c), the commission shall issue the applicant a broker license and an identification card which certifies the issuance of the license and indicates the expiration date of the license. The license shall be displayed at the broker's place of business. For at least two (2) years after the issuance of a license, the license must be assigned to a managing broker. An individual who applies for a broker's license after June 30, 2014, must, during the first two (2) years after the license is issued, take and pass at least thirty (30) hours of postlicensing education focused on the practical matters of real estate transactions instead of the continuing education requirements under IC 25-34.1-9.

(g) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, unless the license is renewed, a broker license expires, for individuals, on a date specified by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-6-4 and expires three (3) years after the initial expiration date. An applicant for renewal shall submit an application in the manner prescribed by the commission and pay the renewal fee established by the commission under IC 25-1-8-2 on or before the renewal date specified by the licensing agency. If the holder of a license does not renew the license by the date specified by the licensing agency, the license expires and becomes invalid without the commission taking any action.

(h) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, if the holder of a license under this section fails to renew the license on or before the date specified by the licensing agency, the license may be reinstated by the commission if the holder of the license, not later than three (3) years after the expiration of the license, meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(i) If a license under this section has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the commission if the holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(j) A partnership, corporation, or limited liability company may not be a broker except as authorized in IC 23-1.5. An individual broker who associates with a managing broker shall immediately notify the commission of the name and business address of the managing broker and of any changes of managing broker that may occur. The commission shall then change the address of the broker on its records to that of the managing broker.

SECTION 74. IC 25-34.1-9-22, AS ADDED BY P.L.200-2013, SECTION 11, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE

EH 1562—LS 7037/DI 109



JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 22. (a) Each instructor of a continuing education course under this chapter must have a permit issued by the commission.

(b) An instructor permit under subsection (a) must:

- (1) be issued for a term of three (3) years and, **subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, expire on a date set by the licensing agency; and
- (2) automatically expire if not renewed by the end of the permit period.

(c) An instructor issued a permit under subsection (a), must meet the following requirements:

- (1) Be a licensed real estate broker or attorney licensed in Indiana, or an expert in the field working in conjunction with a licensed real estate broker or licensed attorney.
- (2) Each year, complete four (4) hours of continuing education approved by the commission and specific to providing real estate instruction. Hours earned under this subdivision may be used toward the completion of the continuing education requirement for a broker under IC 25-34.1-9-11.
- (3) Pay applicable fees established under rules adopted by the commission under IC 4-22-2.
- (4) Meet any additional requirements established by the commission under rules adopted under IC 4-22-2.

(d) If a permit expires under subsection (b)(2), to return to active status, the instructor must:

- (1) successfully complete continuing education requirements set by the commission;
- (2) file a renewal application;
- (3) pay a renewal fee under rules adopted by the commission under IC 4-22-2; and
- (4) pay any applicable late fees established under rules adopted by the commission under IC 4-22-2.

(e) Instructors approved by the commission before July 1, 2013, shall be exempted from the requirement under subsection (c)(1).

(f) The commission may deny, suspend, or revoke approval of any instructor permit issued under this chapter if the commission determines that the instructor has failed to comply with the standards established in this chapter and the rules of the commission.

SECTION 75. IC 25-34.1-11-10, AS ADDED BY P.L.77-2010, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) The board shall issue a certificate of registration to an appraisal management company that:

- (1) has furnished the information required by section 9(a) of this chapter in the manner prescribed by the board; and



(2) paid the fee required under section 9(b) of this chapter.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a certificate of registration issued to an appraisal management company under this chapter expires two (2) years after the date on which the certificate of registration is issued.

SECTION 76. IC 25-34.5-2-9 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 9. (a) Except as provided in section 11 of this chapter, the committee shall issue a license to each applicant who:

(1) successfully passes the examination provided in section 12 of this chapter; and

(2) meets the requirements of section 8 of this chapter.

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this section expires on the last day of the regular renewal cycle established under IC 25-1-5-4.

SECTION 77. IC 25-35.6-3-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 64, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, licenses issued under this article expire, if not renewed, on the date established by the licensing agency under IC 25-1-5-4.

(b) Every person licensed under this article shall pay a fee for renewal of the person's license before the date established by the licensing agency.

(c) If the holder of a license fails to renew the license on or before the date specified by the licensing agency, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the license, not later than three (3) years after the expiration of the license, meets the requirements of IC 25-1-8-6(c).

(d) If a license has been expired for more than three (3) years, the license may be reinstated by the board if the holder meets the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

(e) A suspended license is subject to expiration and may be renewed or reinstated as provided in this section, but a renewal or reinstatement shall not entitle the licensee, while the license remains suspended and until it is reinstated, to engage in the licensed activity, or in any other conduct or activity in violation of the order or judgment by which the license was suspended.

SECTION 78. IC 25-38.1-3-10, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2008, SECTION 12, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license or registration certificate issued under this article is valid for the remainder of the renewal period in effect on the date of issuance.

SECTION 79. IC 25-38.1-3-11, AS ADDED BY P.L.58-2008,



SECTION 34, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a license issued under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date described under subsection (b).

(b) All licenses expire on a date set by the agency in each odd-numbered year but may be renewed by application to the board and payment of the proper renewal fee. In accordance with IC 25-1-5-4(c), the agency shall mail a notice ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days before the expiration to each licensed veterinarian. The agency shall issue a license renewal to each individual licensed under this chapter if the proper fee has been received and all other requirements for renewal of the license have been satisfied. Failure to renew a license on or before the expiration date automatically renders the license invalid without any action by the board.

SECTION 80. IC 25-38.1-3-12, AS ADDED BY P.L.58-2008, SECTION 35, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 12. (a) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, a registration certificate issued under this chapter is valid until the next renewal date described under subsection (b).

(b) **Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)**, all registration certificates expire on a date set by the agency of each even-numbered year but may be renewed by application to the board and payment of the proper renewal fee. In accordance with IC 25-1-5-4(c), the agency shall mail a notice ~~sixty (60)~~ **ninety (90)** days before the expiration to each registered veterinary technician. The agency shall issue a registration certificate renewal to each individual registered under this chapter if the proper fee has been received and all other requirements for renewal of the registration certificate have been satisfied. Failure to renew a registration certificate on or before the expiration date automatically renders the license invalid without any action by the board."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1562 as printed March 27, 2015.)

BROWN L

